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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Insurance Market

----------------------

The past year has been transformative for the UAE, with economic growth driven by 
diversi cation beyond the oil sector, signi cant infrastructure development, strategic 
investments in AI, and an active real estate construction. This has rea irmed the UAE's 
status as a strong economic powerhouse. Capitalizing on this momentum, Orient has made 
substantial progress in both revenue and pro t, while also e ectively reducing operational 
costs due to the substantial premium growth.

The heavy rains and subsequent ooding in April 2024 and the heavy loss originated from it 
has been left behind us. The loss has led to an increase in motor insurance and property 
claims, prompting us to reevaluate risk models and coverage strategies. We have adjusted 
our rates accordingly and as a result we had to let go some underrated risks. Additionally, 
the implementation of an additional top up corporate income tax impacted our net results.

Orient Group Performance

----------------------------------

Despite these obstacles, Orient's performance was outstanding. We achieved a 19% growth 
in Gross Written Premiums, surpassing AED 10.8 billion, building on an already impressive 
base of AED 9 billion. Our net pro t increased to AED 836 Million which is an increase of 14%
over previous year, and shareholders’ equity crossed the AED 6 billion mark, reaching AED 
6.16 billion with an 18% increase over the previous year.

Our Takaful subsidiaries have made exceptional growth in both revenue and pro tability, 
while our other overseas entities maintained good performances. We commenced our 
operation in KSA in the last quarter of 2025. Our discussions are continuing with the regulator 
in Australia where signi cant progress has been made towards launching our Takaful 
operations. We also have received an initial approval from the Regulator in Kuwait to 
establish a branch and have submitted the necessary requirements to the regulator and to 
the Kuwaiti Direct Investment Promotion Authority. These initiatives which marks a 
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signi cant step forward in our journey towards broader geographical expansion across the 
GCC and Australia further strengthening Orient’s global presence.

Orient Interactive Rating

-------------------------------

We remain the sole company in the region to hold an A+ rating from S&P and an “a+” rating 
from AM Best, which extends also to our Takaful operations in the UAE, Egypt, and our 
branches in Saudi Arabia, Oman and Bahrain. This strong rating will also bene t us as we 
establish our Takaful branch in Australia and expand into new markets.

Our Reinsurance program 

---------------------------------

Our reinsurance program, supported by highly rated reinsurers, provides substantial 
automatic capacity, enabling us to respond swiftly to market demands. This agility and high-
volume capacity are crucial for securing business and will be vital for our operations in all 
new markets. We greatly appreciate the support and collaboration from QBE and our 
Reinsurance market partners.

2026 Outlook

-----------------

Looking ahead to 2026, we foresee signi cant growth opportunities due to increased 
infrastructure investments, UAE’s international trade agreements, and the expansion of the 
real estate and retail sectors. Orient is well-positioned to capitalize on these opportunities, 
driving growth in revenue and pro t and enhancing customer satisfaction. We are optimistic 
and enthusiastic about the prospects for 2026.

Moreover having started our digitalization journey , Orient is now incorporating automation 
through Arti cial Intelligence into various aspects of our operations. This includes 
underwriting, high-speed documentation, claims management, personalized customer 
experiences, improved risk assessment, fraud detection, operational e iciency, and 
customer engagement. These initiatives will elevate the customer experience with Orient to 
an entirely new level.
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Financial Highlights

---------------------------

Financial Highlights
AED '000 Growth 

%2025 2024

Gross Written Premium 10,780,992     9,040,179 19%

Insurance Revenue    9,225,618     7,596,370 21%

Net Insurance and 
Investment result

      989,477        856,102 16%

Net Pro t after tax       836,252        731,223 14%

Total Assets 17,273,983   15,671,267 10%

Shareholders’ Equity    6,159,7099     5,207,329 18%

Total Investments, Bank 
Deposits, cash and bank 
balances

11,986,627     9,711,066 23%

Appreciation

-------------------

The trust of our business partners continue to support our growth , and we are indeed 
grateful to our parent company Al Futtaim for their guidance. We also extend our 
appreciation to our intermediaries, reinsurers, third-party administrators, loss adjusters and 
all our business partners for making us where we are today. Our sincere appreciation goes 
to our dedicated sta , whose commitment plays a vital role in the continued growth of 
Orient. 

Omar Al Futtaim 
Vice Chairman 

02 March 2026
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient Insurance P.J.S.C and its
subsidiaries (together referred as the ” Group” ), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2025, consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2025 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.  We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA), as applicable to audits of financial statements of public interest entities together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
public interest entities in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.  We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.  The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities,
reinsurance contracts assets, insurance
contracts assets, reinsurance contract
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2025, insurance contract
liabilities, reinsurance contract liabilities,
insurance contracts assets, reinsurance
contracts assets amounted to AED 8,567,544
thousand, AED 521,288 thousand, AED
55,905 thousand , AED 5,049,195 thousand
respectively.

The Group adopted the PAA model to value
its general insurance and short-term life
contracts. The Group adopted the General
Measurement Model and Variable Fee
Approach models to value its long-term life
contracts.

Any misstatement that occurs in relation to
valuation of insurance contract liabilities and
assets, reinsurance contract liabilities and
assets would affect the assets and liabilities
under insurance and reinsurance contracts and
related income statement accounts.

Based on the above factors which involves
significant judgements and estimation, this is
to be considered as a key audit matter.

The work that we performed to address this key
audit matter, included the following procedures:

We obtained an understanding and reviewed
the Group’s process for determining the key
actuarial assumptions and checked their
reasonability against external data and
industry trends where possible;
Performed risk assessment on the
assumptions (economic and non-economic) to
determine the key assumptions and assessed
the reasonableness of management’s
approach to deriving these assumptions;
We engaged our EY actuarial specialists to
review the methodology, assumptions and
other key inputs and to audit a sample of the
actuarial balances;
Evaluated the skills, qualifications, and
competence of the Group’s appointed actuary
to assess if actuary’s conclusions are
sufficient for audit purposes;
Challenged the method used by management
in deriving the key assumptions and
considered the reasonableness of assumptions
derived by procedures that may include
benchmarking to other market data, assessing
the rationale for changes to key assumptions
over time;
Performed claims testing on incurred claims
to supporting documents such as reports from
loss adjusters, confirmations obtained from
lawyers, reinsurance contracts;
Assessed the reasonableness of expense
assumptions including management’s
determination of the split of expenses between
qualifying and non-qualifying expenses;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities,
reinsurance contracts assets, insurance
contracts assets, reinsurance contract
liabilities. (continued)

Gained an understanding of management’s
process and governance over model change
and tested the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of key controls over
that process;
Reviewed management’s analysis of changes
in the reserves and challenged and tested the
rationale given for key changes year on year;
Obtained an understanding of management’s
approach to determining the risk adjustment
and considered the reasonableness of the
approach and derived risk adjustment;
Tested the application of the risk adjustment
in management’s models;
Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology applied based on facts and
circumstances;
On a sample basis, developed a point
estimate or range based on our understanding
of the Group’s business, and evaluated the
differences between management’s point
estimate and our point estimate or range; and
We assessed the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements relating to
this matter against the requirements of IFRS.

Other information

Other information consists of the information included in the Board of Directors’ Report and in
the Group’s 2025 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the Board of Directors’ Report prior to the date of our
auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the Group’s 2025 Annual Report after the date of our
auditor’s report. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Group’s Articles of Association and the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, as
amended and the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (6) of 2025 and the related Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies,Central Bank of the UAE Board of Directors’ Decision No. (25) of 2014
pertinent to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that any material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, as amended, we report that for the
year ended 31 December 2025:

i) the Group has maintained proper books of account;

ii) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

iii) the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material
respects, with the applicable provisions of the Group’s Articles of Association and the UAE
Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 as amended;

iv) the consolidated financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the
books of account of the Group;

v) investments in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2025, if any, are
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements;

vi) note 22 reflects material related party transactions and the terms under which they were
conducted;

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year
ended 31 December 2025 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32
of 2021, as amended,  or of its Articles  of Association which would have a material impact
on its activities or its financial position; and

viii) note 35 reflects the social contributions made during the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT INSURANCE P.J.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (continued)

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (6) of 2025 and the related financial
Regulations for Insurance Companies, we report that we have obtained all the information and
explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Ernst & Young Middle East (Dubai Branch)

Thodla Hari Gopal 
Registration No: 689

2 March 2026

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Thodla Hari Gopal
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Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
At 31 December 2025 

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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31 December 31 December 
2025 2024 

Notes AED’000 AED’000 

ASSETS 
Property and equipment 8 95,155 89,251 
Intangible asset 6,482 4,996 
Investments held at amortised cost 9  329,576 254,315 
Investments carried at FVOCI 9 3,230,017 2,641,293 
Investments carried at FVTPL 9 1,926,925 1,408,759 
Insurance contract assets 16 55,905 159,223 
Reinsurance contract assets 16 5,049,195 5,598,667 
Other receivables and prepayments 12 70,993 99,696 
Statutory deposits 10 288,301 148,396 
Bank deposits 11 5,499,172 4,491,927 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 712,636 766,376 
Deferred tax asset 32 9,626  8,368 

  
TOTAL ASSETS 17,273,983 15,671,267 

  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Share capital 17 500,000 500,000 
Statutory reserve 18 125,000 125,000 
Legal reserve 18 271,981 250,000 
Exceptional loss reserve 18 431,790 388,258 
General reserve 18 2,004,121 1,888,255 
Fair value investments reserve 18 1,830,094 1,311,534 
Foreign currency translation reserve 18 (328,984) (323,633) 
Retained earnings 1,101,639 894,893 
Reinsurance risk reserve 18 136,690 103,831 
Capital reserve 18 17,910 17,910 

  
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 6,090,241 5,156,048 
Non-Controlling interests 33 69,468 51,281 

  
Total equity 6,159,709 5,207,329 

  

Liabilities 
Employees’ end of service benefits 13 46,755 39,442 
Other payables 14 340,999 280,275 
Investment contract liabilities 15 1,430,175 1,008,155 
Income tax payable 32 103,868  59,786 
Deferred tax liability 32 103,645  51,769 

  
Total other liabilities 2,025,442 1,439,427 

  
Insurance contract liabilities 16 8,567,544 8,263,762 
Reinsurance contract liabilities 16 521,288 760,749 

  
Total insurance contract liabilities 9,088,832 9,024,511 

  
Total liabilities 11,114,274 10,463,938 

  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,273,983 15,671,267 

  

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2026 and 
signed on their behalf by: 

_____________________________________ 
Vice Chairman



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2025

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 31 December
2025 2024

Notes AED’000 AED’000

Insurance revenue 23 9,225,618 7,596,370
Insurance service expenses 24 (5,693,007) (7,338,080)
Net (expenses)/income from reinsurance contracts held 16 (3,016,571) 106,328

INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT 516,040 364,618

Net gain on fair value of ULIP investments (asset) 9.1 256,198 176,825
Change in fair value of investment contract liabilities 15 (187,690) (89,142)
Interest income on investments not measured under FVTPL 364,942 355,080
Other investment income 26 140,500 157,694

NET INVESTMENT RESULT 573,950 600,457

Insurance finance expense for insurance contracts issued 25 (215,045) (163,446) 
Reinsurance finance income for reinsurance contracts held 25 114,532 54,473

NET INSURANCE FINANCE EXPENSE (100,513) (108,973)

NET INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT RESULT 989,477 856,102

Other operating income 27 51,845 28,756
Other operating expenses 28 (106,526) (87,072)

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 934,796 797,786

Income tax for the year 32 (98,160) (66,563)
Deferred Tax 32 (384) -

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 836,252 731,223

Attributable to:
Shareholders 820,984 710,818
Non-controlling interests 33 15,268 20,405

836,252 731,223

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company (AED) 19 164.20 142.16



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2025

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Net profit after tax 836,252 731,223

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other comprehensive expense that will be
 reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2,995) (92,974)

Deferred tax asset on exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 270 8,368

Other comprehensive expense that will be reclassified to
 profit or loss in subsequent periods, net of tax (2,725) (84,606)

Other comprehensive income that will not be
 reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Net changes in fair value of investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 570,168 575,209

Deferred tax liability on unrealized net gain on equity and debt
investments designated at FVOCI (51,315) (51,769)

Total other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, net of tax 518,853 523,440

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
  FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1,352,380 1,170,057

Attributable to:
Shareholders 1,334,193 1,166,330
Non-controlling interests 18,187 3,727

1,352,380 1,170,057



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2025

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Equity Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Foreign
Fair value currency Non-

Share Statutory Legal Exceptional General Reinsurance investments translation Capital Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve loss reserve reserve risk reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total

AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

As at 1 January 2025 500,000   125,000   250,000   388,258   1,888,255   103,831   1,311,534   (323,633)  17,910   894,893   5,156,048  51,281   5,207,329

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 820,984   820,984  15,268   836,252
Other comprehensive income
  for the year, net of tax - - - - - - 518,560  (5,351) - -       513,209  2,919   516,128

Other Changes in Equity - - 21,981 43,532   115,866  32,859 - - -       (214,238) - -

Dividends paid (Note 20) - - - - - - - - -       (400,000)  (400,000) -       (400,000)

Balance as
 at 31 December 2025 500,000 125,000 271,981 431,790 2,004,121  136,690 1,830,094 (328,984) 17,910 1,101,639 6,090,241 69,468 6,159,709



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
12

Equity Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Foreign
Fair value currency Non-

Share Statutory Legal Exceptional General Reinsurance investments translation Capital Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve loss reserve reserve risk reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total

AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

As at 1 January 2024 500,000   125,000   250,000   361,608  1,798,041  73,704   788,100   (255,705)  17,910   631,066   4,289,724  47,556  4,337,280
Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -       710,818   710,818  20,405   731,223
Other comprehensive
income for the year, net of tax - - - - - -       523,434   (67,928) - -       455,506   (16,680)  438,826
Transfer to reserves 26,650 90,214 30,127  (146,991) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 20) - - - - - - - - -       (300,000)  (300,000) -       (300,000)

Balance as
 at 31 December 2024  500,000   125,000   250,000   388,258   1,888,255  103,831   1,311,534   (323,633)  17,910  894,893   5,156,048  51,281   5,207,329



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2025

The attached notes 1 to 38 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
13

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED '000 AED '000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax for the year 934,796 797,786
Adjustment for:
  Depreciation of fixed assets 14,536 6,487
  Lease asset depreciation 3,784 2,834
  Amortisation of intangible assets 2,097 1,945
  Gain on sale of property and equipment (31) 12
  Provision for employees end of service benefits 11,142 6,043
  Gain/(loss) on sale of investments - Investments carried at FVTPL (1,570) (5,032)
  Finance costs 2,164 421
  Unrealized foreign exchange gain (5,610) (44,095)
  Unreaslied ( Gain)/loss on AFS 1,118 2,913
  Interest income (364,943)  (326,050)
  Dividend income (141,934) (124,024)
  Impairment 7,044 10,425

Cash flows from operating activities 462,593 329,665

  Changes in insurance contract assets 103,323 60,954
  Changes in reinsurance contract assets 549,476 (2,076,542)
  Changes in other receivable and prepayments 31,634 (22,412)
  Changes in insurance Contract liabilities 303,775 2,578,508
  Changes in reinsurance contract liabilities (239,470) (176,566)
  Retirement benefit obligation (3,829) (3,013)
  Changes in other Payables 57,254 104,364
  Changes in investment Contract liabilities 422,020 278,893
  Income tax paid (56,282) (17,807)
  Changes in investment contract liabilities (518,167) (381,995)

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,112,327 674,049

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property and equipment (18,809) (11,687)
Lease asset (5,962) (6,256)
Amortisation of Intangible asset (3,589) (3,892)
Interest income 362,011 326,050
Dividend Income 141,934 124,024
Proceeds from Sale of Property and equipment 580 7,144
Movement in deposits with banks – Purchase (5,558,427) (4,325,673)
Movement in deposits with banks – Maturity 4,409,842 3,839,294
Purchase of investments held at amortised cost (293,108) (152,265)
Purchase of investments held at FVOCI (156,547) (138,131)
Sale of held to maturity investments 269,723 229,873
Proceeds from sale of investments held at FVOCI 87,074 95,758

Net cash used in investing activities (765,278) (15,761)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities 1,895 7,650
Dividend paid (400,000) (300,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (398,105) (292,350)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (51,056) 365,938
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 766,376 493,414
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve (2,684) (92,976)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
  OF THE YEAR (NOTE 11) 712,636 766,376
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1 LEGAL STATUS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Orient Insurance PJSC (the “Company”) was incorporated with limited liability on 22 July 1980 in the Emirate of
Dubai by a decree of His Highness The Ruler of Dubai and commenced operations on 1 January 1982. The Company
was registered in accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. 9 of 1984, as amended, (“The Insurance Companies
Law”) on 29 December 1984 with registration No. 14 in the Insurance Companies Register of the Central Bank of
UAE (CBUAE), formerly Insurance Authority (IA). On 2 May 1988 the Company was converted into a public
shareholding company in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Companies Law and has been registered
under UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, relating to commercial companies. The shares of the Company are listed
on the Dubai Financial Market. The Group is subject to the regulations of UAE Federal Decree Law No:48 of 2024
regarding the Regulation of Insurance Activities. The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 27966, Dubai,
United Arab Emirates.

The Group engages in the business of issuing short term insurance contracts in connection with Property, Engineering,
Motor, Marine, Miscellaneous Accidents and Medical (collectively referred to as General Insurance) and Group Life
and Individual Life classes (collectively referred to as Life Insurance). The Group also invests its funds in investment
securities and deposits with financial institutions.

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "the Group"). Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Subsidiary Principal activity
Country of
incorporation     Ownership

2025 2024
Arab Orient Insurance Company General and life insurance Syria 40% 40%
Orient Takaful Insurance
Company (S.A.E) General insurance Egypt 80% 80%
Orient Insurance Limited General insurance Sri lanka 100% 100%
Orient Sigorta Anomin Sirketi General insurance Turkey 100% 100%
Orient Takaful PJSC General insurance UAE 95.78% 95.78%

The holding company of the Group is Al Futtaim Development Services Company, which is based in Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates and has control over the Group. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Al Futtaim Group LLC, which 
is based in Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiary, Orient Takaful Insurance Company (S.A.E.), obtained regulatory approval from 
the Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA) in Egypt on 19 October 2025 to convert its operations from Takaful to 
conventional insurance. Following this approval, the subsidiary changed its name to Orient Insurance – Egypt S.A.E.

Arab Orient Insurance Company
Although the Company owns 40% of Arab Orient Insurance Company, the Company maintains control over the entity 
as it has power over the investee, exposure or rights to its variable returns and the power to affect the investor's returns 
due to additional share holding by the ultimate holding company. Accordingly, management has determined that the 
Group controls the entity.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

2.1 New and amended standards and interpretations

The following new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, which became effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2025, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these revised 
IFRS Accounting Standards, did not have any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior 
periods.

Amendments to IAS 21- Lack of exchangeability
For annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21 
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specifies how an entity should assess whether a currency is 
exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments 
also require disclosure of information that enables users of its consolidated financial statements to understand how 
the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. IFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Furthermore, entities are required to classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss
into one of five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations, whereof the
first three are new.

The standard requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures, subtotals of income
and expenses, and it also includes new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of financial information based
on the identified ‘roles’ of the primary financial statements (PFS) and the notes.

In addition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, which include changing
the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to
‘operating profit or loss’ and removing the optionality around classification of cash flows from dividends and interest.
In addition, there are consequential amendments to several other standards. IFRS 18, and the amendments to the other
standards, are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, but earlier application is permitted
and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.

The Group is currently working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the primary consolidated financial
statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
In May 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 19, which allows eligible entities to elect to apply its reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements in other IFRS
accounting standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in
IFRS 10, cannot have public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares
consolidated financial statements, available for public use, which comply with IFRS accounting standards. IFRS 19
will become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.

As the Group’s equity instruments are listed on Dubai Financial Market, it is not eligible to elect to apply IFRS 19.

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments— Amendments to IFRS 9 and
IFRS 7

In May 2024, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments (the Amendments). The Amendments include:

- A clarification that financial liability is derecognised on the ‘settlement date’ and the introduction of an
accounting policy choice (if specific conditions are met) to derecognise financial liabilities settled using an
electronic payment system before the settlement date

-  Additional guidance on how the contractual cash flows for financial assets with environmental, social and
corporate governance (ESG) and similar features should be assessed

- Clarifications on what constitute ‘non-recourse features’ and what are the characteristics of contractually
linked instruments

- The introduction of disclosures for financial instruments with contingent features and additional disclosure
requirements for equity instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).

The Amendments are effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2026 with early adoption permitted
for classification of financial assets and related disclosures only.

The Group does not anticipate that the amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s financial statements.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11
In July 2024, the IASB issued nine narrow scope amendments as part of its periodic maintenance of IFRS accounting
standards. The amendments include clarifications, simplifications, corrections or changes to improve consistency in

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosure and its accompanying Guidance on implementing IFRS 7,
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 7 Statements of Cash Flows.
The amendments will be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Earlier application is
permitted and must be disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity – Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
In December 2024, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Contracts Referencing Nature- dependent
Electricity. The amendments apply only to contracts that reference nature-dependent electricity; the amendments:

Clarify the application of the ‘own-use’ requirements for in-scope contracts
Amend the designation requirements for a hedged item in a cash flow hedging relationship for in-scope
contracts
Add new disclosure requirements to enable investors to understand the effect of these contracts on
a company’s financial performance and cash flows

The amendments will take effect for annual reporting periods starting on or after 1 January 2026. Early adoption is
allowed, but it must be disclosed. The amendments concerning the own-use exception are to be applied
retrospectively, while the hedge accounting amendments should be applied prospectively to new hedging
relationships designated from the initial application date. Additionally, the IFRS 7 disclosure amendments must be
implemented alongside the IFRS 9 amendments. If an entity does not restate comparative information, it cannot
present comparative disclosures.

The Group does not expect that the amendments will have a material impact on its financial statements.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and interpretation issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee
(“IFRSIC”) applicable to companies under IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the applicable requirements of the United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No.
32 of 2021, as amended, the UAE Federal Decree-Law No. (6) of 2025 and the Insurance Authority Board of
Directors’ Decision No. (25) of 2014 pertinent to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies. The
consolidated financial statements comply with IFRS Accounting Standards.

b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial information has been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following which
are measured at fair value:

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI"); and
ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").
iii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
iv) Financial assets at amortised cost.
v) Insurance and reinsurance contracts, which are measured as a sum of the fulfilment cash flows, which

represent the risk-adjusted present value of estimates of expected cash flows, and the contractual service
margin (CSM), which represents the unearned profit that the entity will recognise as it provides services over
the coverage period. The Group also elects to measure short term and group life insurance contracts under
the premium allocation approach PAA and long-term life products are measured under GMM and VFA as
applicable.  The details of the Group's material accounting policies information and measurement approach
are included in note 3 of these consolidated financial statements.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

c) Functional and presentation currency

This consolidated financial information are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams ("AED") rounded to the nearest thousand,
since that is the currency in which the majority of the Group's transactions are denominated.

d) Use of estimates and judgments

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected.

In preparing this consolidated financial information, the significant judgments made by management in applying the
Group’s accounting policies and estimation of key sources of uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the
audited annual consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024, with the exception
of changes in life insurance related assumptions and of those relating to the measurement of insurance contracts issued
and reinsurance contracts held. With the company's growth, the experience of the life insurance products issued after
the BOD 49 decision (since October 2020) has improved. Therefore, assumptions have been updated to reflect the
actual experience of these policies.

e) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2025. The Group consolidates its Takaful subsidiaries on a conventional basis.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls
an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

a. Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
c. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

a. The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee
b. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
c. The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. Profit or loss and each
component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value

Non-controlling interest in the equity and results of the entities that are controlled by the Group are shown separately
as a part of consolidated statements of changes in equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Any contribution or discounts on subsequent acquisition, after control is obtained, of equity instruments from (or
sale of equity instruments to) non-controlling interest is recognised directly in consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

e) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates
are eliminated, wherever practicable, to the extent of the Group’s interest in the enterprise. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of
control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted
investee or in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of
influence retained.

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

a) Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate, and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

a) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement
period or recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

b) Value added tax (VAT)

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except:

When VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item,
as applicable.
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

c) Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams, which is also the Group’s functional
currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

c) Foreign currencies (continued)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or consolidated statement of profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or consolidated statement of profit or loss, respectively).

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Group companies
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into UAE Dirham at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

d) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land and fixed assets not commissioned are not depreciated. The estimated useful life of fixed assets for the
Group is as follows:

Building 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 to 7 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Right-of-use of asset 3 to 5 years

Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as given above.

Fixed assets not commissioned are stated at cost. When commissioned, they are transferred to the appropriate property
and equipment category and depreciated in accordance with the Group’s policies.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately is
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off.  Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other
expenditure is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as the expense is incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

e) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

• Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
• upon derecognition (equity instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes investment in government bond and treasury bills.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

The Group’s debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt instruments included
under investments carried at FVOCI.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group has elected to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis in
accordance with IFRS 9.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
The Group elected to classify irrevocably its listed equity investments under this category.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

e) Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes listed equity securities and unit linked investments comprised of quoted securities which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI.

Unit linked investments
Unit linked investments are assets backing liabilities arising from contracts, where the liabilities are contractually
linked to the fair value of the financial assets within the policyholder’s unit linked funds and are classified as 'held
for trading' assets and are designated at fair value through statement of income. Investments classified as trading are
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in short term and are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Any change in fair value is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Other financial assets
Other non-derivative financial assets, such as cash and cash equivalents, statutory deposits, and other receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any expected credit losses.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
           Or

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement  and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt and equity instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt and equity instrument is considered to
have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment (continued)
The Group’s debt and equity instruments at fair value through OCI comprise solely of quoted equity securities that
are graded in the top investment category, and therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments. It is the
Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses
the ratings from the external verified sources to determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in
credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

For insurance and reinsurance contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.
Level 3: Inputs are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes
inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for
which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.

f) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition, measurement and presentation
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or Loss,
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables,
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

f) Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated statement of financial position only when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the Group intends to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

h) Bank deposits

Deposits held with banks with original maturities of more than three months are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Deposits held with banks are within the scope of IFRS 9 expected credit
loss calculation for the assessment of impairment.

i) Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees employed in the UAE in accordance with the UAE
Labour Law and for employees employed in the foreign branches of the Group and subsidiary companies in
accordance with the respective region’s labour Law. The entitlement of these benefits is based upon employees’ final
salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to a pension or social security fund established
by the respective countries, calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited
to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

j) Investment contract Liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are issued, and significant insurance risk is not
transferred to the Group .

These liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, being the transaction price excluding any transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of the contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment contract liabilities are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the
investment contract liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and are  recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive income as change in fair value of investments contract liabilities.

k)  Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows, at a pre-tax rate, that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

l) Segment reporting

The Group’s segmental reporting is based on the following operating segments: General insurance and Life insurance.

- The general insurance segment comprises both general insurance and health insurance to individuals and
businesses. General insurance products include property, motor, marine, medical, engineering and
miscellaneous. These products offer protection of policyholder’s assets and indemnification of other parties
that have suffered damage as a result of policyholder’s accident. Non-life healthcare contracts provide
medical cover to policyholders. Revenue in this segment is derived primarily from insurance premiums and
commission income.

- The life insurance segment offers individual and group life insurance. Revenue from this segment is derived
primarily from insurance premium and commission income.

m) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using
the effective interest rate method.

n) Other income

Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive payment is established.

o) Insurance Contracts

An insurance contract is a contract under which one party (the issuer) accepts significant insurance risk from another
party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured
event) adversely affects the policyholder.

The Group issues insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant insurance
risk from its policyholders. As a general guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risk. The Group issues life and non-life insurance to individuals and businesses.

In the normal course of business, the Group uses reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance contract
transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially all of the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion of the
underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss. All
references to insurance contracts in the consolidated financial information apply to insurance contracts issued or
acquired and reinsurance contracts held unless specifically stated otherwise.

Level of Aggregation
IFRS 17 requires a Group to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The Group manages
insurance contracts issued by product lines within an operating segment, where each product line includes contracts
that are subject to similar risks. All insurance contracts within a product line represent a portfolio of contracts. Each
portfolio is further disaggregated into groups of contracts that are issued within a calendar year (annual cohorts) and
are (i) contracts that are onerous at initial recognition; (ii) contracts that at initial recognition have no significant
possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; or (iii) a group of remaining contracts. These groups represent the
level of aggregation at which insurance contracts are initially recognised and measured. Such groups are not
subsequently reconsidered.

For each portfolio of contracts, the Group determines the appropriate level at which reasonable and supportable
information is available to assess whether these contracts are onerous at initial recognition and whether non-onerous
contracts have a significant possibility of becoming onerous. This level of granularity determines sets of contracts.
The Group uses significant judgement to determine at what level of granularity the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and
will be allocated to the same group without performing an individual contract assessment.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Level of Aggregation (continued)
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of insurance contracts
issued. Applying the grouping requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Group aggregates reinsurance contracts
held concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of (i) contracts for which there is a net gain at
initial recognition, if any; (ii) contracts for which at initial recognition there is no significant possibility of a net gain
arising subsequently; and (iii) remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any.

Recognition
Groups of insurance contracts issued are initially recognised from the earliest of the following:

a) the beginning of the coverage period;

b) the date when the first payment from the policyholder is due or received, if there is no due date; or

c) when the Group determines that a group of contracts becomes onerous

Combination of insurance contracts
Sometimes, the Group enters into two or more contracts at the same time with the same or related counterparties to
achieve an overall commercial effect. The Group accounts for such a set of contracts as a single insurance contract
when this reflects the substance of the contracts. When making this assessment, the Group considers whether:

a) The Group is unable to measure one contract without considering the other

b) The rights and obligations are different when looked at together compared to when looked at individually

Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts
The Group assesses its insurance and reinsurance contracts to determine whether they contain distinct components
which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. After separating any distinct components,
the Group applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the (host) insurance contract.

Contract boundaries
The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all future cash flows expected to arise within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from
substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Group can compel the
policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder
with insurance contract services. A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract services ends when:

- The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

- Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

a) The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that
portfolio; and

b) The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not consider the risks that
relate to periods after the reassessment date

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract are not
recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement
IFRS 17 establishes new principles for the measurement of Insurance revenues, assets and liabilities arising from
Insurance Contracts. Below are the measurement models under IFRS 17:

1 General Measurement Model - Default Model based on Best estimate of Future Cash Flows and Risk
adjustment

2 Variable Fee Approach - a modification to GMM or contracts with direct participation features (DPF)
3 Premium Allocation Approach - a simplified approach as an option for contracts with shorter duration. (<= 12

months)

The Group uses different measurement approaches, depending on the type of contracts as follows :

Nature of Contracts Product classification Measurement model

Property & Casualty Contracts Insurance contracts PAA

Health Insurance Insurance contracts PAA

Short term life insurance contracts Insurance contracts PAA

Term and Endowment life insurance
contracts Insurance contracts GMM

Direct participating contracts Insurance contracts with direct
participation features VFA

All reinsurance contracts held other than
long term individual life Reinsurance contracts held PAA

Long term individual life reinsurance
contracts held Reinsurance contracts held GMM

Investment contracts without discretionary
participation features (DPF) Financial instruments Financial liabilities measured at

FVTPL under IFRS 9

IFRS 17 options Adopted approach

Insurance acquisition
cash flows for Insurance
Contract issued

For contracts measured under PAA, IFRS
17 allows an accounting policy choice of
either expensing the insurance acquisition
cashflows when incurred or amortizing
them over the contract’s coverage period.

Insurance acquisition cash flows are
allocated to related groups of insurance
contracts and amortized over the
coverage period of the related group.

Liability for Remaining
Coverage (“LRC”)
adjusted for financial
risk and time value of
money

For contracts measured under PAA, where
there is no significant financing
component in relation to the LRC, or
where the time between providing each
part of the services and the related
premium due date is no more than a year,
an entity is not required to make an
adjustment for accretion of interest on the
LRC.

For contracts measured under the PAA,
there is no allowance as the premiums
are expected to be received within one
year of the coverage period.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement (continued)

IFRS 17 options Adopted approach

Liability for Incurred
Claims (“LIC”) adjusted
for time value of money

For contracts measured under PAA, where
claims are expected to be paid within a
year of the date that the claim is incurred,
it is not required to adjust these amounts
for the time value of money.

For all contracts, the Group discounts the
LIC for the time value of money.

Insurance finance
income and expenses

IFRS 17 provides an accounting policy
choice to recognise the impact of changes
in discount rates and other financial
variables in profit or loss or in OCI. The
accounting policy choice (the P&L or OCI
option) is applied on a portfolio basis.

The Group includes all insurance finance
income or expenses for the period in
profit or loss.

Disaggregation of risk
adjustment

An insurer is not required to include the
entire change in the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk in the insurance service
result. Instead, it can choose to split the
amount between the insurance service
result and insurance finance income or
expenses.

The Group disaggregates changes in the
risk adjustment for non- financial risk
between insurance service result and
insurance finance income or expenses.

Presentation of income /
(expense) from
reinsurance contracts
held

IFRS 17 allows an option to disaggregate
part of the movement in LFIC resulting
from changes in discount rates and present
this in OCI.

The Group has elected to present a single
net amount in net expenses from
reinsurance contracts held.

Insurance revenue
For group of contracts measured not under PAA, it comprises of

Insurance claims and expenses incurred in the period as expected at the start of the period, excluding amounts
related to the loss component, repayments of investment components and insurance acquisition expenses;
Changes in the RA, excluding changes that relate to future coverage which adjusts the CSM and amounts
allocated to the loss component;
Amounts of the CSM recognised in profit and loss for the services provided in the period;
Actual vs expected premiums (or other premium-related cash flows such as commission) that relate to past
or current services; and
The recovery of the insurance acquisition cash flows which is determined by allocating a portion of the
premiums related to the recovery of these cashflows on the basis of the passage of time over the expected
coverage of a group of contracts.

For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Group recognises insurance revenue based on the
passage of time (after adjustment of the bad debt) over the coverage period of a group of contracts with the exception
of Engineering (all risk) and Construction (all risk) contracts where revenue is recognised using an increasing risk
pattern.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement (continued)

Insurance service expenses
For group of contracts measured not under PAA, it comprises of

Claims incurred in the period (excluding investment components) and other directly attributable insurance
service expenses incurred in the period;
The amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows;
Changes that relate to past service (specifically changes in the estimate of the LIC at the start of the period
including the change in the RA on the LIC); and
Losses on onerous groups of contracts (i.e. the loss on setting up a loss component) and reversals of such
losses which represent changes that relate to future service.
For contracts not measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows is reflected in
insurance service expenses in the same amount as insurance acquisition cash flows recovery reflected within
insurance revenue, as described above.
For contracts measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows is based on the
pattern of revenue recognition under the PAA.
Other expenses not meeting the above categories are included in other operating expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held
The Group presents the income from reinsurance contracts held and the expenses for reinsurance contracts held on a
net basis.

Reinsurance income will consist of:

Actual claims and other expenses recovered during the period;
The effect of changes in the risk of reinsurers non-performance;
Losses recovered on underlying contracts and reversal of such recoveries;
Changes that relate to past service adjustments co incurred claims component; and
Other incurred directly attributable expenses.

Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held (continued)
For contracts measured under the PAA, reinsurance expenses will consist of:

PAA premiums recognised as revenue in the period ceded to the reinsurer; and
Ceding commission earned in the period.

For contracts measured under the GMM, reinsurance expenses will consist of:

Expected claims and other expenses recovery;
Changes in the RA recognised for the risk expired;
CSM recognised for the services received; and
Premium (and other related cash flows) experience adjustments relating to current service.

Insurance finance income or expenses
Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of insurance contracts
arising from:

Interest accreted on the CSM;
Interest accreted on the PAA LIC adjusted for the financing effect
The financing effect on the LIC measured under the PAA (if adjusted for the financing effect);
The effect of changes in FCFs at current rates, when the corresponding CSM unlocking is measured at the
locked-in rates;
Any interest charged to or added to insurance / reinsurance asset or liability balances; and
The effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions.

For all groups of contracts, the Group recognize insurance finance income or expenses for the period in profit or loss.
The finance income and expenses from insurance contracts issued recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss reflects the unwind of the liabilities at the locked-in rates.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement (continued)

a) Insurance Contract measured under PAA-Initial and subsequent measurement

The Group applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to the insurance contracts that it issues and reinsurance
contracts that it holds, as:

i) The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including insurance contract services
arising from all premiums within the contract boundary or

ii) For contracts longer than one year, the Group has modelled possible future scenarios and reasonably expects
that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group containing those contracts under the
PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would be produced applying the general model. In
assessing materiality, the Group has also considered qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types
of its lines of business.

The Group does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant variability in
the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining coverage during the
period before a claim is incurred.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Group measures the liability for remaining
coverage as:

a) The premiums, if any, received at initial recognition
b) Minus any insurance acquisition cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year

or less where this is expensed,
c) Plus or minus any amount arising from the derecognition at that date of the asset recognised for insurance

acquisition cash flows and
d) Any other asset or liability previously recognised for cash flows related to the group of contracts that the

Group pays or receives before the group of insurance contracts is recognised.

Where facts and circumstances indicate that contracts are onerous at initial recognition, the Group performs additional
analysis to determine if a net outflow is expected from the contract. Such onerous contracts are separately grouped
from other contracts and the Group recognized a loss in profit or loss for the net outflow, resulting in the carrying
amount of the liability for the group being equal to the fulfilment cash flows. A loss component is established by the
Group for the liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group depicting the losses recognized

b) Insurance contracts measured other than PAA - Initial and Subsequent Measurement

The Group measures a group of contracts on initial recognition as the sum of the expected fulfilment cash flows
within the contract boundary and the contractual service margin representing the unearned profit in the contracts
relating to services that will be provided under the contracts.

Fulfilment cash flows comprise unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows, discounted to
present value to reflect the time value of money and financial risks, plus a risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The Group’s objective in estimating future cash flows is to determine the expected value, or the probability weighted
mean, of the full range of possible outcomes, considering all reasonable and supportable information available at the
reporting date without undue cost or effort. The Group estimates future cash flows considering a range of scenarios
which have commercial substance and give a good representation of possible outcomes. The cash flows from each
scenario are probability-weighted and discounted using current assumptions.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement (continued)

b) Insurance contracts measured other than PAA - Initial and Subsequent Measurement (continued)

When estimating future cash flows, the Group includes all cash flows that are within the contract boundary including:

Premiums and related cash flows
Claims and benefits, including reported claims not yet paid and expected future claims
Payments to policyholders resulting from embedded surrender value options
An allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows attributable to the portfolio to which the contract belongs
Claims handling costs
Policy administration and maintenance costs, including recurring commissions that are expected to be paid to
intermediaries
An allocation of fixed and variable overheads directly attributable to fulfilling insurance contracts
Transaction-based taxes
Costs incurred for performing investment activities that enhance insurance coverage benefits for the
policyholder
Costs incurred for providing investment-related service and investment-return service to policyholders
Other costs specifically chargeable to the policyholder under the terms of the contract

The Group updates its estimates at the end of each reporting period using all newly available information, as well as
historic evidence and information about trends. The Group determines its current expectations of probabilities of
future events occurring at the end of the reporting period. In developing new estimates, the Group considers the most
recent experience and earlier experience, as well as other information.

The measurement of fulfilment cash flows includes insurance acquisition cash flows which are allocated as a portion
of premium to profit or loss (through insurance revenue) over the period of the contract in a systematic and rational
way on the basis of the passage of time.

Subsequent measurement:
The CSM at the end of the reporting period represents the profit in the group of insurance contracts that has not yet
been recognised in profit or loss, because it relates to future service to be provided.

For a group of insurance contracts, the carrying amount of the CSM of the group at the end of the reporting period
equals the carrying amount at the beginning of the reporting period adjusted, as follows:

The effect of any new contracts added to the group
For contracts measured under the GMM, interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the
reporting period, measured at the discount rates at initial recognition

The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future service, except to the extent that:

Such increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a loss; or
Such decreases in the fulfilment cash flows are allocated to the loss component of the liability for remaining
coverage
The effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM
The amount recognised as insurance revenue because of the transfer of insurance contract services in the
period, determined by the allocation of the CSM remaining at the end of the reporting period (before any
allocation) over the current and remaining coverage period.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Measurement (continued)

b) Insurance contracts measured other than PAA - Initial and Subsequent Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement: (continued)
For direct participating contracts measured under the VFA, the Group adjusts the CSM for the change in the amount
of the Group’s share of the fair value of the underlying items and changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future
services, except to the extent that:

a decrease in the amount of the Group’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, or an increase in the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a
loss in profit or loss (included in insurance service expenses) and creating a loss component; or
an increase in the amount of the Group’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, or a decrease in the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, is allocated to the loss component, reversing losses
previously recognised in profit or loss (included in insurance service expenses).

The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future service that adjust the CSM comprise of:

Experience adjustments that arise from the difference between the premium receipts (and any related cash
flows such as insurance acquisition cash flows and insurance premium taxes) and the estimate, at the beginning
of the period, of the amounts expected. Differences related to premiums received (or due) related to current or
past services are recognised immediately in profit or loss while differences related to premiums received (or
due) for future services are adjusted against the CSM
Changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the liability for remaining coverage. For
contracts measured under the GMM these changes exclude those relating to the time value of money and
changes in financial risk (recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income rather
than adjusting the CSM)
Differences between any investment component expected to become payable in the period and the actual
investment component that becomes payable in the period. Those differences are determined by comparing (i)
the actual investment component that becomes payable in the period with (ii) the payment in the period that
was expected at the start of the period plus any insurance finance income or expenses related to that expected
payment before it becomes payable
Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future service.

For direct participating contracts measured under the VFA changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future
services and adjust the CSM are measured at current discount rates and include the changes in the effect of the time
value of money and financial risks that do not arise from underlying items.

Where, during the coverage period, a group of insurance contracts becomes onerous, the Group recognises a loss in
profit or loss for the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the liability for the group being equal to the
fulfilment cash flows. A loss component is established by the Group for the liability for remaining coverage for such
onerous group depicting the losses recognised.

The Group measures the carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period as the
sum of: (i) the liability for remaining coverage comprising fulfilment cash flows related to future service allocated to
the group at that date and the CSM of the group at that date; and (ii) the liability for incurred claims for the Group
comprising the fulfilment cash flows related to past service allocated to the group at that date.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Reinsurance contracts held
Reinsurance contracts held are accounted for applying IFRS 17 when they meet the definition of an insurance contract.
This includes the condition that the contract must transfer significant insurance risk.

Reinsurance contracts transfer significant insurance risk only if they transfer to the reinsurer substantially all the
insurance risk relating to the reinsured portions of the underlying insurance contracts, even if a reinsurance contract
does not expose the issuer (reinsurer) to the possibility of a significant loss.

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of insurance contracts
issued. Applying the grouping requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Group aggregates reinsurance contracts
held concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of;

i) contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition, if any;
ii) contracts for which at initial recognition there is no significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently;

and
iii) remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any

A group of reinsurance contracts held is recognised as follows:

If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage, the date the Group initially recognizes any underlying
insurance contracts (onerous or not).

In all other cases, at the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts. However, if the Group
recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts on an earlier date and the related reinsurance contract
was entered into before that earlier date, then the group of reinsurance contracts is recognised on that earlier date.

Cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the
reporting period in which the Group is compelled to pay amounts to the reinsurer or has a substantive right to receive
services from the reinsurer.

A substantive right to receive services from the reinsurer shall end when the reinsurer has the practical ability to
reassess the risks transferred to it and can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or
has a substantive right to terminate the coverage. The Group measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance
contracts that it holds on the same basis as insurance contracts that it issues. However, they are adapted to reflect the
features of reinsurance contracts held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of
expenses or reduction in expenses rather than revenue.

Where the Group recognises a loss on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts or
when further onerous underlying insurance contracts are added to a group, the Group establishes a loss-recovery
component of the asset for remaining coverage for a group of reinsurance contracts held depicting the recovery of
losses. The Group calculates the loss-recovery component by multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying
insurance contracts and the percentage of claims on the underlying insurance contracts the Group expects to recover
from the group of reinsurance contracts held. The Group uses a systematic and rational method to determine the
portion of losses recognised on the group to insurance contracts covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held
where some contracts in the underlying group are not covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held. The loss-
recovery component adjusts the carrying amount of the asset for remaining coverage.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

o) Insurance Contracts (continued)

Modification and derecognition
The Group derecognises insurance contracts when:

The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or expired); or

The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model, or the
applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract. In such cases, the Group derecognises the initial
contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Group recognises amounts paid or received for the
modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Insurance acquisition cash flows
The Group includes insurance acquisition cash flows in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts if they are
directly attributable to either the individual contracts in a group, the group itself or the portfolio of insurance contracts
to which the group belongs. The Group estimates, at a portfolio level, insurance acquisition cash flows not directly
attributable to the group but directly attributable to the portfolio. The Group then allocates them to the group of newly
written and renewed contracts on a systematic and rational basis.

Discount rates
The Group uses the bottom-up approach for the groups of contracts measured under PAA and GMM and VFA.

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the uncertainty
about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk adjustment reflects an
amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected
value amount. The Group has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount
above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target percentiles.

Contractual service margin (CSM)
The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts that represents the unearned
profit the Group will recognise as it provides services in the future.

An amount of the CSM for a group of insurance contracts is recognised in profit or loss as insurance revenue in each
period to reflect the insurance contract services provided under the group of insurance contracts in that period. The
amount is determined by:

Identifying the coverage units in the group
Allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounts in profit or loss to reflect the
insurance contract services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the current period
and expected to be provided in the future.

The number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of insurance contract services provided by the contracts in
the group, determined by considering the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected coverage period.

For groups of unit linked life insurance contracts, the coverage unit is the unit reserve while for other long term life
groups of contracts, the coverage unit is the cumulative in force sum insured. The total coverage units of each group
of insurance contracts are reassessed at the end of each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of remaining
coverage for claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of contracts in the period. They are then allocated
based on probability-weighted average duration of each coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to
be provided in the future.

For reinsurance contracts issued, the number of coverage units in a group reflects the expected pattern of underwriting
of the underlying contracts because the level of service provided depends on the number of underlying contracts in
force. The quantity of benefit is the maximum probable loss. The remaining coverage units are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period to reflect the expected pattern of service and the expectations of lapses and cancellations of
contracts. The remaining coverage is allocated based on probability weighted average duration of each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this consolidated financial information, the significant judgements made by management in applying the
Group's accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Assessment of significance of insurance risk
The Group applies its judgement in assessing whether a contract transfers to the issuer significant insurance risk. A
contract transfers significant insurance risk only if an insured event could cause the Group to pay additional amounts
that are significant in any single scenario and only if there is a scenario that has commercial substance in which the
issuer has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis upon an occurrence of the insured event, regardless of whether
the insured event is extremely unlikely.

Onerosity determination
IFRS 17 does not provide any specific guidance about which facts and circumstances should be considered, to indicate
that a group of contracts is onerous on initial recognition or subsequently. The Group assesses the Onerosity
considering the factors such as:

a) the expected ratio of claims to premiums (or any other measurement of expected profitability) compared
with the actual ratio over the coverage period.

b) economic or regulatory changes that can cause significant revisions in the expected cash flows; or
c) significant changes to the costs involved in fulfilling contracts: e.g., as a result of internal reorganizations or

changes to the prices of services or products used to fulfil its insurance obligations.

Amortisation of the Contractual Service Margin
The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts that represents the unearned
profit the Company will recognise as it provides services in the future. An amount of the CSM for a group of insurance
contracts is recognised in profit or loss as insurance revenue in each period to reflect the insurance contract services
provided under the group of insurance contracts in that period. The amount is determined by:

• Identifying the coverage units in the group
• Allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounts in profit or loss to reflect the
• insurance contract services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the current

period and expected to be provided in the future
• Recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated to coverage units provided in the period

The number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of insurance contract services provided by the contracts in
the group, determined by considering the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected coverage period. For
groups of life insurance contracts, the quantity of benefits is the contractually agreed sum insured over the period of
the contracts. The total coverage units of each group of insurance contracts are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period to adjust for the reduction of remaining coverage for claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of
contracts in the period. They are then allocated based on probability-weighted average duration of each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

For reinsurance contracts issued, the number of coverage units in a group reflects the expected pattern of underwriting
of the underlying contracts because the level of service provided depends on the number of underlying contracts in
force. The quantity of benefit is the maximum probable loss. The remaining coverage units are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period to reflect the expected pattern of service and the expectations of lapses and cancellations of
contracts. The remaining coverage is allocated based on probability weighted average duration of each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM amortisation is similar to the insurance contracts issued and reflects the
expected pattern of underwriting of the underlying contracts because the level of service provided depends on the
number of underlying contracts in-force.



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2025

36

5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Discounting
For cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on underlying items, an entity may determine the discount rate
based on a liquid risk-free yield curve. This is adjusted to eliminate differences between the liquidity characteristics
of the financial instruments that underlie the chosen curve and those of the insurance contract. The Group has elected
to use the Bottom-up approach in determining the discount rates based on liquid risk-free yield curve.

Time value of money
The Group adjusts the carrying amount of the insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance contracts assets to reflect
the time value of money and the effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash
flows of the group of contracts.

Under the bottom-up approach, the discount rate is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in
liquidity characteristics between the financial assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash
flows (known as an ‘illiquidity premium’). The risk-free curve itself will either be derived by the Group from risk
free assets in the market, or the Group may choose to apply a published risk-free yield curve. The top-down approach
starts with the determination of a reference portfolio. The reference portfolio yield will be taken as the yield on the
underlying items to which the liability cashflows are linked.

The following yield curves are used for contracts under PAA, GMM and VFA entity wise

2025
Entity

Year UAE Oman Sri Lanka* Egypt* Bahrain Turkey Syria Saudi
Arabia

1 3.59% 4.14% 7.95% 17.00% 5.21% 34.89% 18.97% 3.63%
5 3.63% 4.18% 9.88% 13.00% 5.25% 30.4% 19.00% 3.66%

10 4.00% 4.55% 10.71% 13.00% 5.62% 27.95% 19.37% 4.03%
20 4.44% 4.99% NA 13.00% 6.06% NA 19.82% 4.48%
30 4.39% 4.94% NA 13.00% 6.01% NA 19.77% 4.43%

2024
Entity

Year UAE Oman Sri Lanka* Egypt* Bahrain Turkey Syria

1 4.3% 4.9% 8.7% 13.0% 5.8% 41.7% 18.6%
5 4.2% 4.8% 10.7% 17.0% 5.7% 30.1% 18.4%
10 4.2% 4.8% 11.3% 17.0% 5.7% 23.7% 18.5%
20 4.3% 4.9% NA 17.0% 5.8% 17.9% 18.5%
30 4.0% 4.6% NA 17.0% 5.5% 14.4% 18.2%

Yield curve for Egypt and Sri Lanka are provided by their respective regulators.

Liability for Incurred Claims
The Group will calculate the LIC as follows:

a. Best Estimate (BEL) of the fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims including outstanding claims,
IBNR and IBNER.

b. Expenses already incurred but not yet paid as well as expenses not incurred (unallocated loss adjustment
expenses (ULAE)) in relation to claims and the cost of handling incurred claims at that date.

c. Adjustment for the time value of money.
d. Risk adjustment for non-financial risks.
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5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Measurement of the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance
The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI
is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL,
such as:

a. Determining the criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
b. Determining the criteria and definition of default;
c. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL; and
d. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

The Group regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between
expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience.

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and
integral credit enhancements.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Insurance risk

The Group follows a rigorous process to manage risks in line with the groupwide risk appetite. The Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) department oversees the Executive Risk Committee and the Risk Management Framework. The
Executive Risk Committee acts as a second line of defense, but also has the authority to take immediate executive
actions to address the risk issues. The Executive Risk Committee meets at least once every quarter.

The Group strives to maintain an effective risk culture, which is essential for the Group’s success in developing and
maintaining an effective risk management system. Individual executives are accountable for the implementation and
oversight of specific risks. The risk owners are responsible for ensuring adequate level of review and confirmation of
the risk evaluations and the effectiveness of control.

The Group evaluates the exposure to climate change risk by using scenario analysis and stress testing based on the
results of the modeling of natural catastrophic events exposure and by assessing the impact on the Group’s
profitability and solvency. The scenario analysis covers different lines of businesses, countries, perils and return
period data. The results show that the Group has sufficient capital to withstand most of the shocks from the various
scenarios included in the stress test.

Insurance risk is the risk arising from the uncertainty around the actual experience and/or policyholder behavior being
materially different than expected at the inception of an insurance contract. These uncertainties include the amount
and timing of cash flows from premiums, commissions, expenses, claims and claim settlement expenses paid or
received under a contract.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed
the estimated amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims and
benefits are greater than the estimate. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical techniques.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Insurance risk

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board
by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify
the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of
risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

6.1.1 Frequency and severity of claims

The Group manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims
handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of risk, line of business and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria.

The Group has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductibles and to reject the
payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for payment of some
or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Group’s strategy limits the total exposure to any one territory
and the exposure to any one line of business.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements
is that the Group should not suffer net insurance losses more than the limit defined in the Risk appetite statement in
any one event. The Group has survey units dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit
investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. The risks are frequently reviewed individually and
adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and
conditions, and other factors. The Group actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable developments.

6.1.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
result, certain claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision include incurred but
not reported claims (IBNR).

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may
not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insurance
contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities and changing
situation during the claim evaluation. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group
considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order
to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation
value and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding
its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is possible that the final
outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The amount of insurance claims is in certain
cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions.This provides a
greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected.The projections given by the various
methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.The  most  appropriate estimation technique
is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.1.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group’s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience where greater weight
is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss- ratio estimate is an important assumption in the
estimation technique and is based on previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes,
anticipated market experience and claims inflation.

6.1.3 Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Group uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and market data to
measure its claims liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly from the Group’s claims reports and screening of the
actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period to derive data for the contracts held. The
Group has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular, the line of business in which the insured companies
operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information is used to develop scenarios related to the latency
of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The Group uses several statistical methods and actuarial techniques to incorporate the various assumptions made in
order to estimate the ultimate cost of claims. The three methods more commonly used are the Chain Ladder, Expected
Loss Ratio and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection
of estimated development factors based on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied
to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate
claims cost for each accident year.

Chain-ladder techniques are most appropriate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a
relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insurer does not
have a developed claims history for a particular class of business or involves significant deal of changes in terms of
process.

Expected Loss Ratio method (ELR) is used to determine the projected amount of claims, relative to earned premiums.
ELR method is used for line of businesses that lack past data, while the chain ladder method is used for stable
businesses. In certain instances, such as new lines of business, the ELR method may be the only possible way to
figure out the appropriate level of loss reserves required.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market based estimate and an estimate
based on claims experience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such as premiums; the latter is based on
the paid or incurred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
experience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of business).

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of
accident years within the same class of business.

The Group uses standard actuarial techniques to estimate its loss provisions as mentioned above. Actuarial techniques
and/or methodologies used to estimate the loss provisions could vary based on the specific nature of the lines of
business. The general excluding motor and group life business typically have a lower frequency and higher severity
of claims while the medical and motor business are more attritional in nature i.e., higher frequency and lower severity.
For the attritional lines, any inconsistencies in the claims processes could impact the loss development experience
assumed in the technical provisions calculation and hence is one of the key assumptions in the estimation of the
technical provisions. For the less attritional lines, typically the loss ratio assumptions under the Bornhuetter-Ferguson
technique is a key assumption in the estimation of the technical provisions. The Group monitors closely and validates
the key assumptions in the estimation of the technical provisions on a periodic basis.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.1.4 Key risks arising from contracts issued

The Group issues insurance contracts, investment contracts and contracts that provide investors with interests in
collective investment schemes managed by the Group. The nature and extent of the underwriting and financial risks
arising from these contracts are determined by the contract design. The risks are evaluated for risk management
purposes in conjunction with the risks mitigated by related reinsurance contracts and the risks arising from financial
assets held to fund the settlement of the liabilities. The extent to which profit or loss and equity in any period are
sensitive to financial risks depends on the extent to which they are economically hedged or borne by contract holders
and the extent of any mismatches inherent in the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Product Key risks Risk mitigation

Life risk Mortality risk: death of policyholder
earlier than expected

Reinsurance with financially strong
reinsurers

Term assurance and critical
illness

Morbidity risk: diagnosis of critical
illness earlier than expected

Reinsurance with financially strong
reinsurers

Endowment Mortality risk Reinsurance with financially strong
reinsurers

Unit Linked contracts Mortality risk: death of policyholder
earlier than expected

Not significant but mitigated with
financially strong reinsurers

Policyholder behaviour risk Surrender Penalties

All life risk and life savings contracts expose the Group to significant insurance risk. Although mortality and
morbidity experience may be affected by unexpected events (e.g. epidemics), the most significant changes to
insurance risk factors (e.g. lifestyle changes, medical advances and improvements in social conditions) tend to occur
over a long period of time. The longer the coverage period, the greater the Group’s exposure to insurance risk.

Term assurance and endowment contracts provide policyholders with a fixed lump sum payable on death. Term
assurance contracts provide coverage over a fixed term. The premiums for non-participating savings contracts are
level throughout the duration of the contracts. Critical illness contracts are similar to term assurance but pay out a
lump sum if the policyholder is diagnosed with an illness specified in the contract.

Term plans do not have a significant interest rate risk since there is no investment guarantee. Endowment plans have
some guarantees payable on maturity and the payment is credited to policyholder's account is set at the Group's
discretion based on prevailing market rates.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.1.4 Key risks arising from contracts issued (continued)

Unit linked insurance producers do not have a significant interest rate risk since the investment risk is transferred to
the policyholder.
Non-life contracts
product Key risks Risk mitigation
Property and casualty Extreme weather events Diversification of types of risk, industries and

geographic locations in which risks are written
Natural catastrophes Extensive analysis of data to enhance risk

selection, segmentation and profitability
Legislative changes giving rise
to increased claims

Reinsurance with financially strong reinsurers,
including excess of loss catastrophe cover

Emergence of long-tailed
claims: e.g. latent disease type
claims

The key risks arising from non-life contracts are the unknown frequency and severity of claims, which are influenced
by the nature of the risks covered and the geographic location in which the risks are written. For property, the
frequency and severity of claims are affected by the occurrence of extreme weather events (e.g. floods, wildfires and
hurricanes) and other natural catastrophes (e.g.earthquakes). In particular, the cost of rebuilding or repairing a
property, together with the cost of business interruption, is a significant feature in the overall value of claims in this
portfolio. In addition, increasing climate risk could potentially introduce material uncertainty in assumptions and
result in inaccurate pricing of insurance risk. For retail casualty, motor insurance contracts are subject to legislative
and regulatory changes. For example, where compensation for future loss of earnings or nursing care is settled by
paying a single lump sum, the assumed rate of investment return on the lump sum is a key sensitivity and the rate
applicable in certain jurisdictions is determined by legislation.

For commercial casualty, the severity of claims is significantly affected by increases in the value of settlements
awarded for latent diseases and inflation. The nature and frequency of claims may be affected by emerging trends and
changes in legislation. For example, risk exposure for intangible assets has grown while our customers’ business is
increasingly conducted online and more data is collected and stored through the cloud. Although this portfolio does
not contain a large number of individually significant claims, a high frequency of claims can be a risk, particularly
where generic trends impact many individuals – e.g. poor housing design, negligent professional advice and cyber
threats.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk on investments held on following securities issued by counterparties with an
acceptable rating provided by reputable rating agencies.

The credit ratings of investment securities, deposits and bank balances are as follows:

31 December 2025 Credit ratings
Below

BBB+ to BBB- or
 A+ to A- BBB- not rated Total
 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Assets (excluding impairment)
Investments held at amortized cost - -  333,647 333,647
Investments carried at FVTPL 21,325 - 1,905,600 1,926,925
Investments carried at FVOCI 3,024,871  7,793  201,168  3,233,832
Statutory deposits 84,079  20,265 183,957  288,301
Bank deposits 4,442,023  742,618 338,400  5,523,041
Cash and Cash equivalents 309,366  298,965 104,305  712,636
Less: Impairment - - - (31,755)

Total 7,881,664  1,069,641 3,067,077 11,986,627

31 December 2024 Credit ratings
Below

BBB+ to BBB- or
 A+ to A- BBB- not rated Total
 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Assets (excluding impairment)
Investments held at amortized cost -  -  255,593  255,593
Investments carried at FVTPL -  -  1,408,759  1,408,759
Investments carried at FVOCI  2,443,630  -  201,981  2,645,611
Statutory deposits 34,623  59,103  54,670  148,396
Bank deposits 3,112,555  1,225,465  179,173  4,517,193
Cash and Cash equivalents 213,694  30,406  522,276  766,376
Less: Impairment - - -  (30,862)

Total  5,804,502  1,314,974  2,622,452  9,711,066

The Group has exposure to the following primary risks from its use of financial instruments and operations:

i) Credit risk
ii) Liquidity risk
iii) Market risk
iv) Operational risk
v) Underwriting risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk

i) Credit risk

Consolidated financial statements
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

a. The Group only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are monitored on an ongoing
basis in order to reduce the Group’s exposure to bad debts.

b. The Group seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for individual
agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

c. The Group’s bank balances are maintained with a range of local banks in accordance with limits set by the
board of directors.

d. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position.

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Investments held at amortised cost 329,576 254,315
Investments carried at FVOCI 3,230,017 2,641,293
Investments carried at FVTPL 1,926,925 1,408,759
Insurance contract assets 55,905 159,223
Reinsurance contract assets 5,049,195 5,598,667
Other receivables and prepayments 70,993 99,696
Statutory deposits 288,301 148,396
Bank deposits  5,499,172 4,491,927
Cash and cash equivalents 712,636 766,376

Total 17,162,720 15,568,652

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represent the current credit risk
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

i) Credit risk (continued)

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instrument, references have been
made to the specific notes. The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Group by
classifying assets according to the Group's credit rating of counterparties.

At 31 December 2025
Neither past due nor impaired
Investment Non-investment Past due

grade grade or impaired Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Investments held at amortised cost 333,647 - -  333,647
Investments carried at FVOCI 3,233,832 - -  3,233,832
Investments carried at FVTPL 1,926,925 - -  1,926,925
Statutory deposits 288,301 - -  288,301
Cash and cash equivalents 712,636 - - 712,636
Bank deposits 5,523,041 - - 5,523,041

12,018,382 - - 12,018,382
Less: Impairment - - - (31,755)

Total 12,018,382 - - 11,986,627

At 31 December 2024
Neither past due nor impaired
Investment Non-investment Past due

grade grade or impaired Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Investments held at amortised cost 255,593  -  -  255,593
Investments carried at FVOCI 2,645,611  -  -  2,645,611
Investments carried at FVTPL 1,408,759  -  -  1,408,759
Statutory deposits 148,396  -  -  148,396
Bank deposits 4,517,193  -  -  4,517,193
Cash and Cash equivalents 766,376  -  -  766,376

9,741,928 - -  9,741,928
Less: Impairment - - -  (30,862)

Total  9,741,928  -  -  9,711,066

The Group provides credit facilities up to 120 days. For assets to be classified as ‘past due and impaired’ contractual
payments in arrears are more than 120 days and an impairment adjustment is recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for this. When the credit exposure is adequately secured, arrears more than 120 days might still be
classified as ‘past due but not impaired”, with no impairment adjustment recorded.

The Group issues unit–linked investment policies in a number of its operations. In the unit–linked business, the
policyholder bears the investment risk on the assets held in the unit–linked funds, as the policy benefits are directly
linked to the value of the assets in the fund. Therefore, the Group has no material credit risk on unit-linked financial
assets.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

i) Credit risk (continued)

Reinsurance credit risk is managed through placement with approved reinsurers, which are generally international
reputed companies with acceptable credit ratings. Reinsurance agreements are placed by the Group with an "A" or
above rated company.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurance company insolvencies, the Group regularly evaluates
the financial condition of its reinsurance companies and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurance companies.

ii)    Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its commitments associated with insurance contracts
and financial liabilities as they fall due.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basis and management ensures that sufficient liquid funds are
available to meet any commitments as they arise. The table below shows the maturity of the assets and liabilities of
the Group based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations. As the Group does not have any interest-bearing
liabilities, the totals in the table match the consolidated statement of financial position.

31 December 2025
Less than More than
one year one year No term Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Assets
Investments held at amortised cost 274,833  58,814  -  333,647
Investments carried at FVOCI 15,122  764,769  2,453,941  3,233,832
Investments carried at FVTPL - -  1,926,925  1,926,925
Statutory deposits 258,036  30,265  -  288,301
Bank deposits 5,223,228  299,813  -  5,523,041
Cash and bank balances - - 712,636  712,636

Less: Impairment - - - (31,755)

Total assets 5,771,219  1,153,661  5,093,502  11,986,627

Liabilities
Lease liability (Other payables) 8,403  7,711 -  16,114

Total liabilities 8,403  7,711 -  16,114
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2024
Less than More than
one year one year No term Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Assets
Investments held at amortised cost  198,758  56,835  -  255,593
Investments carried at FVOCI  12,748  734,471  1,898,393  2,645,612
Investments carried at FVTPL -  -  1,408,759  1,408,759
Statutory deposits 80,022  68,374  -  148,396
Cash and bank balances including
Bank deposits 4,248,457  301,467  733,644  5,283,568

4,539,985  1,161,147  4,040,796 9,741,928
Less: Impairment -  -  -  (30,862)

Total assets  4,539,985  1,161,147  4,040,796  9,711,066

Liabilities
Lease liability (Other payables)  5,995  6,060  -  12,055

Total liabilities  5,995 6,060  -  12,055

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all
securities traded in the market. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity
risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Group to interest risk, whereas fixed interest
rate instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is on account of its investment in floating rate bonds included under
available for sale investments. The Group limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in the
currencies in which its investment is denominated.
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

iii) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Details of financial assets carrying interest rate risk as at 31 December are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2025

Non-interest
Less than 1 to 5 bearing

1 year years items Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Investments held at amortised cost 274,833  58,814 -  333,647
Investments carried at FVOCI 15,122  764,769  2,453,941  3,233,832
Investments carried at FVTPL - -  1,926,925  1,926,925
Statutory deposits 258,036  30,265 -  288,301
Cash and cash equivalents 121,467 -  591,169  712,636
Bank deposits 5,223,227  299,814 -  5,523,041

Less: Impairment - - - (31,755)

5,892,685  1,153,662  4,972,035  11,986,627

31 December 2024
Non-interest

Less than bearing
1 year 1 to 5 years items Total

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Investments held at amortised cost  198,758  56,835  -  255,593
Investments carried at FVOCI  12,748  734,470  1,898,393  2,645,611
Investments carried at FVTPL  -  -  1,408,759  1,408,759
Statutory deposits 80,022  68,374  -  148,396
Cash and cash equivalents 32,732  -  733,644  766,376
Deposits with banks 4,215,728  301,465  -  4,517,193

 4,539,988  1,161,144  4,040,796  9,741,928
Less: Impairment - - -  (30,862)

 4,539,988  1,161,144 4,040,796 9,711,066

Bank Deposits held in UAE Contribute to 91% of the total deposits for the group on which fixed interest rate range
from 2.00% to 6.25% (2024: 2.00% to 6.55%)

The sensitivity of the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss to reasonably possible changes in interest rates,
with all other variables constant is considered insignificant.

Non-interest-bearing Investments carried at FVOCI includes equity investment in a single counterparty amounting to
AED 2,446,185 (YE 2024 AED 1,894,671).
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

iii) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Insurance contract balances

Within 1 1-2 2-5 More than
31 December 2025 Year years years 5 years Total

Contracts measured under PAA
Insurance contract assets 62,941 (3,677) (4,763) (53) 54,448
Insurance contract liabilities (5,622,337) (1,275,512) (669,935) (16,088) (7,583,872)
Reinsurance contract assets 3,397,084 1,089,607 525,205 4,623  5,016,519
Reinsurance contract liabilities (480,089) (15,314) (10,189) (7,122) (512,714)

Within 1 More than
31 December 2024 Year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total

Contracts measured under PAA
Insurance contract assets 134,379 17,183 (6,369) (7) 145,186
Insurance contract liabilities (5,142,194) (1,070,558) (1,126,604) (24,913) (7,364,269)
Reinsurance contract assets 3,669,626 898,929 966,355 20,024 5,554,934
Reinsurance contract liabilities (774,632) 16,523 29,845 1,115 (727,149)

CSM recognition in profit or loss
The disclosure of when the CSM is expected to be in profit or loss in future years is presented below:

31 December 2025

AED 000s Within 1 More than
Year 2-5 years 5 years Total

Insurance contracts issued
Life insurance unit 12,815  77,377  27,490  117,682

12,815  77,377  27,490  117,682

Reinsurance contracts held
Life insurance unit (2,544) (9,792) (9,642) (21,978)

(2,544) (9,792) (9,642) (21,978)

31 December 2024

AED 000s Within 1 More than
Year 2-5 years 5 years Total

Insurance contracts issued
Life insurance unit  15,204  61,308  23,742  100,254

 15,204  61,308  23,742  100,254

Reinsurance contracts held
Life insurance unit (1,756) (7,185) (8,197) (17,138)

(1,756) (7,185) (8,197) (17,138)
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

iii) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit. The effect of decreases in exchange rates is expected to
be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown. There is no other effect on equity.

Effect on consolidated
increase in other

                                                       exchange rate comprehensive income

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Egyptian Pounds +5% 12,451 8,569
Syrian Pounds +5% 57 213
Sri Lankan Rupees +5% 895  1,510
Turkish Lira +5% 5,997  3,666

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

The Group’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices. The Group’s equity investments comprise securities quoted on the Stock Exchanges in United Arab
Emirates.

The effect on equity as a result of a change in the fair values of available for sale investments at 31 December 2025,
due to a reasonably possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant, is as follows:

Change in Effect on Effect on
equity price equity profit or loss

% AED '000 AED '000
31 December 2025
All investments - (Mainly Dubai Financial Market) 10 244,619 2,133

31 December 2024
All investments - (Mainly Dubai Financial Market
  and Abu Dhabi Stock Market) 10  189,839  1,667
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2 Financial risk (continued)

iv) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to
financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective
segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.

v) Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk refers to the potential loss to the Group emanating from the perils covered and the processes used
in the conduct of business.

Underwriting risk is mitigated by the Group by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The
variability of risks is also managed by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The Group regularly reviews its management of risk in the context of
relevant internal and external factors and changes in these factors.

6.3 Claims development process

The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for
each successive accident year at each  reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.

Gross claims development
Before

Accident year 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
For the contracts
  issued under PAA AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

At the end of each
   reporting year 3,035,093   3,175,785   3,922,461   6,801,819   5,545,450   5,545,450
One year later 2,903,730   3,053,482   3,654,522   6,016,070  -       6,016,070
Two years later 2,859,978   3,066,547   3,661,579  -  -       3,661,579
Three years later 2,851,204   2,956,049  -  -  -       2,956,049
Four years later 2,844,191  -  -  -  -       2,844,191

Gross estimates of the
  Undiscounted 2,844,191   2,956,049   3,661,579   6,016,070   5,545,450   21,023,339
  amount of the claims
Cumulative payments to date (2,727,819)  (2,644,663)  (3,395,947)  (4,400,261)  (3,488,908)  (16,657,598)

Gross undiscounted liabilities
  for incurred claims 116,373  311,386  265,632   1,615,809   2,056,542   4,365,742
Prior 2020 182,509

Effect of discounting (214,172)
'Effect of risk adjustment for non-financial risk 218,167
Others* 480,298

Total gross liabilities for incurred claims 5,032,544

* Others includes Gross Unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve and Insurance claims payable.



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2025

51

6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 Claims development process (continued)

Net claims development
Before

Accident year 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
Accident year AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

At the end of each
   reporting year 808,787  726,422  893,882   1,125,620  1,322,353  1,322,353
One year later 701,161  690,685  826,478 1,036,338 -      1,036,338
Two years later 681,924  683,452 824,627 - - 824,627
Three years later 683,526 664,756 - - - 664,756
Fours years later  676,885 - - - - 676,885

Net estimates of the
  undiscounted 676,885 664,756     824,627      1,036,338     1,322,353   4,524,959
  amount of the claims
Cumulative payments to date (648,071)  (633,432)  (782,149)  (974,298)  (856,344)     (3,894,294)

Net undiscounted liabilities
  for incurred claims 28,814 31,324  42,478  62,040 466,009       630,665

Prior 2020 25,224

Effect of discounting (38,415)
Effect of risk adjustment for non financial risk 36,790
Others* 362,605

Total net liabilities for incurred claims 1,016,869

* Others includes Net Unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve, Non-performance risks and Net (re)insurance
claims payable.

6.4 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis for contracts measured under PAA

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2025 31 December 2024

Impact on Impact on
LIC LIC LIC LIC

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,032,544) - (5,130,675) -
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 4,015,675 - 4,230,554 -

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,016,869) - (900,121) -

0.5 % increase - Discount rate
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,012,105)  (20,439) (5,102,439)  (28,236)
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 3,998,704  16,971 4,205,340  25,214

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,013,401)  (3,468) (897,099)  (3,022)

0.5% decrease - Discount rate
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,059,009)  26,465 (5,159,346)  28,671
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 4,038,621  (22,946) 4,256,159  (25,605)

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,020,388)  3,519 (903,187)  3,066
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.4 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for contracts measured under PAA

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2025 31 December 2024

                         Impact on                                         Impact on
LIC LIC LIC LIC

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

5% decrease - Risk adjustment
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,021,606)  (10,938) (5,119,350)  (11,325)
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 4,006,588  9,087 4,220,932  9,622

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,015,018)  (1,851) (898,418)  (1,703)

5% increase - Risk adjustment
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,043,488)  10,944 (5,142,000) 11,325
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 4,024,768  (9,093) 4,240,176  (9,622)

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,018,720)  1,851 (901,824)  1,703

5% increase - Loss reserves
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (5,250,647) 218,103 (5,388,415)  257,740
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 4,197,022  (181,347) 4,443,287  (212,733)

Net insurance contract liabilities (1,053,625)  36,756 (945,128)  45,007

5% decrease - Loss reserves
Insurance contract liabilities - LIC (4,814,447)  (218,097) (4,872,935)  (257,740)
Reinsurance contract assets - LIC 3,834,334  181,341 4,017,821  212,733

Net insurance contract liabilities (980,113)  (36,756) (855,114)  (45,007)
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6 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.4 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for contracts not measured under PAA

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2025 31 December 2024

Net Impact on Net Impact on
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance
contract contract contract contract
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Insurance contract liabilities (982,215) - (885,446) -
Reinsurance contract assets 24,101 - 10,133 -

Net insurance contract liabilities (958,114) - (875,313) -

5% increase - Expenses
Insurance contract liabilities (982,423)  208 (885,855)  404
Reinsurance contract assets 24,101  0 10,180  (47)

Net insurance contract liabilities (958,322)  208 (875,675)  357

10% increase - Lapses
Insurance contract liabilities (982,432)  217 (885,518)  68
Reinsurance contract assets 24,888  (787) 10,960  (827)

Net insurance contract liabilities (957,544)  (570) (874,558)  (759)

1% increase - Mortality
Insurance contract liabilities (982,245)  30 (885,579)  128
Reinsurance contract assets 24,131  (30) 10,261  (128)

Net insurance contract liabilities (958,114) - (875,318)  -

6.5 Concentration of insurance risk

The Group’s underwriting business is mainly based within GCC countries.

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large insurance
claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties for reinsurance
purposes.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or
economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not  relieve  the  Group  from  its
obligations  to  policyholders.  The Group remains liable to  its  policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent
that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations  assumed under the reinsurance agreements.

The Group's Insurance contract liabilites classified based on business segment is noted below.

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Non-Life Life Total Non-Life Life Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Insurance contract
  liabilities - net (7,248,938) (1,262,701)  (8,511,639)  (7,049,949) (1,054,580) (8,104,529)

Reinsurance contract
  assets - net 4,268,269 259,638  4,527,907 4,629,823 208,095 4,837,918
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7 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024, all financial assets listed below are classified as Level 1 within the
fair value hierarchy. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are not materially different
from their carrying value at the reporting date.

31 December 2025

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Financial assets at FVTPL:
Quoted equity securities in UAE 21,327 - - 21,327
Quoted equity securities in UAE held on behalf
 of policyholders' unit linked products - - - -
Quoted equity securities outside UAE held
 on behalf of policyholders' unit linked products 1,905,598 - - 1,905,598

Total 1,926,925 - - 1,926,925

Financial assets measured at FVOCI:
Quoted equity securities in UAE 2,446,185 -  - 2,446,185
Quoted debt security in UAE 761,337 - - 761,337
Quoted equity securities outside UAE 7,756 -  - 7,756
Other invested assets 18,554 -  - 18,554
Less: Impairment (3,815) - - (3,815)

Total 3,230,017 - - 3,230,017

31 December 2024
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Financial assets at FVTPL:
Quoted equity securities in UAE 16,674  -  -  16,674
Quoted equity securities in UAE held on behalf
 of policyholders' unit linked products 77,902  -  - 77,902
Quoted equity securities outside UAE held
 on behalf of policyholders' unit linked products  1,314,183  -  -  1,314,183

Total  1,408,759  -  -  1,408,759

Financial assets measured at FVOCI:
Quoted equity securities in UAE 1,898,394 -  - 1,898,394
Quoted debt security in UAE 734,093 - - 734,093
Quoted equity securities outside UAE 1 -  - 1
Other invested assets 13,124 -  - 13,124
Less: Impairment (4,319) - - (4,319)

Total 2,641,293 - -  2,641,293
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8 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipments,
furnitures Motor Right of

Land Building and fixtures vehicles use assets Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Cost
  At 1 January 2024 20,000  96,830  31,758  2,862  13,002  164,452
  Additions -  - 5,463  838  11,642  17,943
  Disposal -  - (697)  (224)  (6,223)  (7,144)
  Foreign exchange
   differences -  - (2,875)  (40)  (830)  (3,745)

  At 31 December 2024 20,000  96,830  33,649  3,436  17,591  171,506

  At 1 January 2025 20,000  96,830  33,649  3,436  17,591  171,506
  Additions -  - 17,958  851  5,962  24,771
  Disposal -  - (311)  (249)  (20)  (580)
  Foreign exchange
   differences -  -  (443)  2  (65)  (506)

  At 31 December 2025 20,000  96,830  50,853  4,040  23,468  195,191

Accumulated depreciation

  At 1 January 2024 - 46,746  23,011  1,979  8,832  80,568
  Charge for the year - 3,859  2,297  332  2,834  9,322
  On disposals -  -  (637)  (206)  (5,198)  (6,041)
  Foreign exchange
   differences -  -  (1,176)  (54)  (364)  (1,594)

  At 31 December 2024 - 50,605  23,495  2,051  6,104  82,255

  At 1 January 2025 - 50,605  23,495  2,086  6,104  82,290
  Charge for the year - 3,858  10,303  375  3,784  18,320
  On disposals -  -  (272)  (84)  (20)  (376)
  Foreign exchange
   differences -  -  (60)  (8)  (130)  (198)

  At 31 December 2025 - 54,463  33,466  2,369  9,738  100,036

Net carrying amount
  At 31 December 2024 20,000  46,225  10,154  1,385  11,487  89,251

Net carrying amount
  At 31 December 2025 20,000  42,367  17,387  1,671  13,730  95,155
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9 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Fair value
through

Amortised Fair value profit and
cost through OCI loss Total

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

At 31 December 2025
Quoted equity securities in UAE * - 2,446,185  21,327 2,467,512
Quoted debt security in UAE - 769,092 - 769,092
Quoted equity securities outside UAE - 1 - 1
Quoted equity securities in UAE - - -    -
held on behalf of policyholders' unit
linked products (Note 9.1) - - - -
Quoted equity securities outside UAE
held on behalf of policyholders' unit
linked products (Note 9.1) - - 1,905,598 1,905,598

Total equity and debt securities - 3,215,278  1,926,925  5,142,203

Total other invested assets 333,647  18,554  -  352,201

Impairment (4,071)  (3,815) -  (7,886)

Total 329,576  3,230,017  1,926,925  5,486,518

At 31 December 2024

Fair value
through

Amortised Fair value profit and
cost through OCI loss Total

AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Quoted equity securities in UAE -  1,898,394  16,674  1,915,068
Quoted debt security in UAE -  734,093  -  734,093
Quoted equity securities outside UAE -  1 -  1
Quoted equity securities in UAE
 held on behalf of policyholders' unit
 linked products (Note 9.1)  -  -  77,902  77,902
Quoted equity securities outside UAE
  held on behalf of policyholders' unit
   linked products (Note 9.1) - -  1,314,183  1,314,183

Total equity and debt securities  -  2,632,488  1,408,759  4,041,247

Total other invested assets  255,593  13,124  -  268,717

Total invested assets 255,593  2,645,612  1,408,759  4,309,964
Impairment (1,278) (4,319) - (5,597)

Total 254,315  2,641,293  1,408,759  4,304,367

*Investments measured under FVTPL amounting to AED 21.3 million (2024: AED 16.3 million) are held by related
party on behalf of the Group.
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9 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

9.1 UNIT LINKED INVESTMENTS HELD ON BEHALF OF POLICYHOLDERS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Balance as at 1 January 1,392,085 1,010,091
Deposits received 1,042,134 799,276
Surrenders and maturity payments (709,473)  (538,030)
Policy and charges deducted (75,346)  (56,077)
Change in fair value of unit linked assets 256,198 176,825

1,905,598 1,392,085

10 STATUTORY DEPOSITS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

a) Statutory deposit that cannot be withdrawn without the prior
approval of the Ministry of Economy in accordance with
Article 42 of Federal Law No.6 of 2007 10,000 10,000

b) Amounts under lien with Capital Market Authority, Sultanate of Oman 63,808 58,374

c) Amounts under lien with Insurance Authority Syria 8 7

d) Amounts under lien with Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority 34,063 30,813

e) Amounts under lien with Turkish Treasury 109,020 44,662

f) Amounts under lien with Central Bank of UAE
 on behalf of Orient Takaful PJSC 11,676  3,811

g) Amounts under lien with Central Bank of Bahrain 979 729

h) Amounts under lien with Insurance Authority, Saudi Arabia 58,747 -

Total 288,301 148,396

11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Bank balances and cash 591,169 733,644
Deposits with banks maturing within three months 121,467 32,732

Cash and cash equivalents 712,636 766,376
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11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Bank deposits maturing after three months 5,523,041 4,517,192
Impairment (23,869) (25,265)

5,499,172 4,491,927

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Cash and bank balances (including Bank Deposits):
Inside UAE: 5,591,586 4,946,098
Outside UAE: 620,222 312,205

Total 6,211,808 5,258,303

Bank balances include AED 29,045 thousand (31 December 2024: AED 16,815 thousand) under lien against the bank
guarantees.

Bank Deposits held in UAE Contribute to 91% of the total deposits for the group on which fixed interest rate range
from 2.00% to 6.25% ( 2024: 2.00% to 6.55%)

12 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Prepayments 20,359 55,238
Refundable deposits 6,402 11,525
Accrued interest 11,134 7,513
Receivable from employees 1,719 265
Deferred acquisition costs 31,379 25,155

Total 70,993 99,696

Acquisition costs are those costs that are primarily related to the acquisition of new investment contracts with
investment management services, particularly for single premium contracts. These costs comprise of commissions
and other incremental expenses directly related to the issuance of each new contract. These costs are initially
recognized as an asset in the statement of financial position and are amortized over the period of the underlying
contract in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment review is performed at each reporting date,
when an indication of impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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13 EMPLOYEES’S END OF SERVICE BENIFITS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 39,442 36,412
Charge for the year 11,142 6,043
Paid during the year (4,111) (1,926)
Exchange differences 282 (1,087)

Total 46,755 39,442

14 OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Payable to employees 41,006 35,365
Expired Risk Liability 7,646 17,133
Lease Liability 16,114 12,055
Advance from policyholders 68,966 33,310
FISP Surrender payable 27,949 15,794
Other payables 179,318 166,618

Total 340,999 280,275

15 LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Balance as at 1 January 1,008,155 729,262
Deposits received 818,813 658,540
Surrenders and maturity payments (534,567) (440,033)
Policy and charges deducted (49,916) (28,756)
Net change in fair value of investment contract liabilities 187,690 89,142

Total 1,430,175 1,008,155



Orient Insurance PJSC and its subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2025

60

16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the
table below:

31 December 2025 31 December 2024

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

Insurance contracts issued
General and medical 54,448  (7,303,386)  (7,248,938) 113,548 (7,163,507) (7,049,959)
Life (Group and individual life) 1,457  (1,264,158)  (1,262,701) 45,675 (1,100,255) (1,054,580)

Total insurance contracts issued 55,905  (8,567,544)  (8,511,639) 159,223 (8,263,762) (8,104,539)

Reinsurance contracts held
General and medical 4,780,815  (512,546)  4,268,269 5,356,972  (727,149) 4,629,823
Life (Group and individual life) 268,380  (8,742)  259,638 241,695  (33,600)  208,095

Total reinsurance contracts issued 5,049,195  (521,288)  4,527,907 5,598,667  (760,749)  4,837,918
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Insurance liability of remaining coverage (LRC) & liability for incurred claims (LIC) for insurance contracts  as on 31 December 2025

31 December 2025
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Opening Balance of Insurance
  Contract Assets 145,186  -  1,021  -  13,026  -  -  -  -  159,223
Opening Balance of Insurance
  Contract Liabilities  (2,227,598)  (5,996)  (530,119)  (2,460)  (304,947)  (12,668)  (49,299)  (4,904,186)  (226,489)  (8,263,762)

Net opening position of
  Insurance contracts
   as on 1 January 2025  (2,082,412)  (5,996)  (529,098)  (2,460)  (291,921)  (12,668)  (49,299)  (4,904,186)  (226,489)  (8,104,529)

Insurance Revenue 9,144,744  -  72,220  -  8,654  -  -  -  -  9,225,618
Incurred Claims and other
  expense (61,910)  -  -  722  -  1,014  (182,283)  (5,243,737)  (89,889)  (5,576,083)
Amortisation of insurance
  acquisition Cash Flows (1,068,552)  -  (16,351)  -  (513)  -  -  -  - (1,085,416)
Changes related to past service
- adjustment to LIC -  -  -  -  -  - 145,935  751,535  97,245  994,715
Changes in Onerous Liability
and reversal of such losses -  (24,924)  -  (4)  -  (1,295)  -  -  -  (26,223)

Insurance Service Expenses  (1,130,462)  (24,924) (16,351)  718  (513)  (281)  (36,348)  (4,492,202)  7,356  (5,693,007)

Insurance Service Result 8,014,282  (24,924)  55,869  718  8,141  (281)  (36,348)  (4,492,202)  7,356  3,532,611
Insurance finance expenses
recognized in profit and loss -  -  (70,457)  (77)  (15,269)  (500)  -  (129,243)  501  (215,045)

Total changes to statement of
Profit and loss 8,014,282  (24,924)  (14,588)  641  (7,128)  (781)  (36,348)  (4,621,445)  7,857  3,317,566
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Insurance liability of remaining coverage (LRC) & liability for incurred claims (LIC) for insurance contracts as on 31 December 2025 (continued)
31 December 2025
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Investment Components -  - 112,459  -  72,842  -  (185,301)  -  -  -

Cash flows
Premium Received (9,710,362)  -  (224,085)  -  (36,350)  -  -  - -       (9,970,797)
Claims & Other Expenses Paid 440,559 - - - - -  183,792  4,703,899 -  5,328,250
Acquisition Cash Flows Paid 874,169 -  36,544 -  1,534 - - - -  912,247

Total Cash Flows (8,395,634) -  (187,541) -  (34,816) -  183,792  4,703,899 -       (3,730,300)

Foreign Currency
  Translation difference (3,425)  1,229 - - - - -  7,355  465  5,624

Net Balance as at
31 December 2025 (2,467,189)  (29,691)  (618,768)  (1,819)  (261,023)  (13,449)  (87,156)  (4,814,377)  (218,167)  (8,511,639)

Closing Insurance of
  Contract Assets 70,858  (23) -  - 8,302  (6,281)  (564)  (15,386)  (1,001)  55,905
Closing Insurance of
  Contract Liabilities  (2,538,047)  (29,668)  (618,768)  (1,819)  (269,325)  (7,168)  (86,592)  (4,798,991)  (217,166)  (8,567,544)

Net Insurance contract liabilities
Balance as at
  31 December 2025  (2,467,189)  (29,691)  (618,768)  (1,819)  (261,023)  (13,449)  (87,156)  (4,814,377)  (218,167)  (8,511,639)
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Insurance liability of remaining coverage (LRC) & liability for incurred claims (LIC) for insurance contracts as on 31 December 2024

31 December 2024
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Opening Balance of Insurance
  Contract Assets 207,434 -  207 -  12,542 - - - -  220,183
Opening Balance of Insurance
  Contract Liabilities (2,001,487)  (1,357)  (428,266)  (206)  (334,966)  (11,114)  (36,593)  (2,738,335)  (132,928)  (5,685,252)

Net opening position of
  Insurance contracts
   as on 1 January 2024  (1,794,053)  (1,357)  (428,059)  (206)  (322,424)  (11,114)  (36,593)  (2,738,335)  (132,928)  (5,465,069)

Insurance Revenue 7,511,826 -  74,639 -  9,905 - - - -  7,596,370
Incurred Claims and other
  expense - - - - -  2,209  (195,657)  (6,885,420)  (66,124)  (7,144,992)
Amortisation of insurance
  acquisition Cash Flows (714,405) -  (10,980) -  (463) - - - -  (725,848)
Changes in liabilities for Incurred
Claims - - - - - -  164,997 410,752  (32,300) 543,449
Changes in Onerous Liability
and reversal of such losses -  (5,076) -  (2,254) -  (3,359) - - -  (10,689)

Insurance Service Expenses  (714,405)  (5,076)  (10,980)  (2,254)  (463)  (1,150)  (30,660)  (6,474,668)  (98,424)  (7,338,080)

Insurance Service Result 6,797,421  (5,076)  63,659  (2,254)  9,442  (1,150)  (30,660)  (6,474,668)  (98,424)  258,290
Insurance finance expenses
recognized in profit and loss - -  (93,652) -  3,031  (404) -  (72,577)  156  (163,446)

Total changes to statement of
Profit and loss  6,797,421  (5,076)  (29,993)  (2,254)  12,473  (1,554)  (30,660)  (6,547,245)  (98,268)  94,844
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Insurance liability of remaining coverage (LRC) & liability for incurred claims for insurance contracts (LIC) as on 31 December 2024 (continued)

31 December 2024
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Investment Components - -  106,284 -  53,466 -  (159,750) - - -

Cash flows
Premium Received (7,797,187) -  (213,792) -  (37,798) - - - -       (8,048,777)
Claims & Other Expenses Paid - - - - - -  177,704  4,314,493 -  4,492,197
Acquisition Cash Flows Paid 636,160 -  36,462 -  2,362 - - - -  674,984

Total Cash Flows  (7,161,027) -  (177,330) -  (35,436) -  177,704  4,314,493 -       (2,881,596)

Foreign Currency
  Translation difference  75,247  437 - - - - -  66,901  4,707  147,292

Net Balance as at
  31 December 2024  (2,082,412)  (5,996)  (529,098)  (2,460)  (291,921)  (12,668)  (49,299)  (4,904,186)  (226,489)  (8,104,529)

Closing Insurance of
  Contract Assets 145,186 -  1,021 -  13,026 - - - -  159,233
Closing Insurance of
  Contract Liabilities (2,227,598)  (5,996)  (530,119)  (2,460)  (304,947)  (12,668)  (49,299)  (4,904,186)  (226,489)  (8,263,762)

Net Insurance contract liabilities
Balance as at 31 December 2024  (2,082,412)  (5,996)  (529,098)  (2,460)  (291,921)  (12,668)  (49,299)  (4,904,186)  (226,489)  (8,104,529)
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of measurement component of insurance contract balances not measured under the PAA

31 December 2025 Present value Risk adj. for
Amounts in AED'000 of future non-financial

cashflows risk CSM Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Opening insurance contract assets 14,047 - -  14,047
Opening insurance contract liabilities (789,942)  (9,297)  (100,254)  (899,493)

Net balance as at 1 January 2025 (775,895)  (9,297)  (100,254)  (885,446)

Changes that relate to current service
CSM recognised for the services provided - - 23,379  23,379
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
  for the risk expired -  2,394  -  2,394
Experience adjustments-premium and associated
  cashflows 41,784  -  -  41,784

41,784  2,394  23,379  67,557

Changes that relate to future service
Contracts initially recognised in the period  48,722  (1,279)  (47,544)  (101)
Changes in estimates that results in onerous
  contract losses or reversals of such losses - - - -
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM (8,146)  (1,119)  7,760  (1,505)

40,576  (2,398)  (39,784)  (1,606)

Changes that relate to past service
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims (37,852) - -  (37,852)

(37,852)  -  -  (37,852)

Insurance service result 44,508  (4)  (16,405)  28,099
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued (85,134)  (146)  (1,023)  (86,303)

Total amounts recognised in PL (40,626)  (150)  (17,428)  (58,204)

Cash flows
Premiums received (260,435) - -  (260,435)
Claims and other directly attributable
  expenses paid 183,792 - -  183,792
Insurance acquisition cash flows 38,078 - -  38,078

Total cash flows (38,565) - -  (38,565)

Net balance as at 31 December 2025  (855,086)  (9,447)  (117,682)  (982,215)

Closing insurance contract assets 1,457 - - 1,457
Closing insurance contract liabilities  (856,543)  (9,447)  (117,682)  (983,672)

Net balance as at 31 December 2025 (855,086)  (9,447)  (117,682)  (982,215)
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of measurement component of insurance contract balances not measured under the PAA

31 December 2024 Present value Risk adj. for
Amounts in AED'000 of future non-financial

cashflows risk CSM Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Opening insurance contract assets 12,749 - - 12,749
Opening insurance contract liabilities (732,199)  (9,283)  (69,663)  (811,145)

Net balance as at 1 January 2024  (719,450)  (9,283)  (69,663)  (798,396)

Changes that relate to current service
CSM recognised for the services provided -  -  22,249  22,249
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
  for the risk expired -  2,526  -  2,526
Experience adjustments-premium and associated
  cashflows 32,717  -  -  32,717

 32,717  2,526  22,249  57,492

Changes that relate to future service
Contracts initially recognised in the period  21,250  (1,363)  (20,382)  (495)
Changes in estimates that results in onerous
  contract losses or reversals of such losses - - - -
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM 27,300  (1,017)  (31,537)  (5,254)

 48,550  (2,380)  (51,919)  (5,749)

Changes that relate to past service
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims  (12,706) - -  (12,706)

 (12,706) - -  (12,706)

Insurance service result 68,561 148  (29,670)  39,039
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued (89,944)  (162)  (921)  (91,027)

Total amounts recognised in PL (21,383)  (14)  (30,591) (51,988)

Cash flows
Premiums received  (251,590) - -  (251,590)
Claims and other directly attributable
  expenses paid 177,704 - -  177,704
Insurance acquisition cash flows  38,824 - -  38,824

Total cash flows  (35,062) - -  (35,062)

Net balance as at 31 December 2024 (775,895)  (9,297)  (100,254)  (885,446)

Closing insurance contract assets 14,047  14,047
Closing insurance contract liabilities (789,942)  (9,297)  (100,254)  (899,493)

Net balance as at 31 December 2024 (775,895)  (9,297)  (100,254)  (885,446)
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Reinsurance contracts for remaining (ARC) coverage & asset for incurred claims (AIC) for reinsurance contracts as on 31 December 2025

31 December 2025
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Opening Balance of Reinsurance
Contract Assets 1,320,342  4,038 3,534  8,771  9,882  6,476  15,070  4,038,113  192,441  5,598,667
Opening Balance Reinsurance
Contract Liabilities (727,149)  -  (12,707)  -  (20,893) - - - -  (760,749)

Net opening position of reinsurance
  contracts assets on
    1 January 2025 593,193  4,038  (9,173)  8,771  (11,011)  6,476  15,070  4,038,113  192,441  4,837,918

Reinsurance Expenses (6,712,624) -  (5,933) -  (4,621) - - - -       (6,723,178)

Incurred Claims and other directly
  attributable expense - - - - - (1,010)  9,107  3,909,113  107,825  4,025,035
Amortisation of Insurance
  Acquistion Cash Flows  410,080 - - - - - - - -  410,080
Changes related to past service
  - adjustment to LIC - - - - - (36)  (2,713)  (617,848)  (118,199)  (738,796)
Claims Recovered (Loss Recovery) - 8,007  (113)  2,012  (116)  498 - - -  10,288

Net (expenses)/ income from
  reinsurance contracts held (6,302,544)  8,007  (6,046)  2,012  (4,737)  (548)  6,394  3,291,265  (10,374)  (3,016,571)
Finance income from
  Reinsurance Contracts held (PL) - - 52 -  104  486 -  114,226  (336)  114,532

Total changes to statement of
Profit and loss (6,302,544)  8,007  (5,994)  2,012  (4,633)  (62)  6,394  3,405,491  (10,710)  (2,902,039)
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Reinsurance contracts for remaining (ARC) coverage & asset for incurred claims (AIC) for reinsurance contracts as on 31 December 2025
(continued)

31 December 2025
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Cash flows
Premiums paid 6,644,379 -  7,556 -  13,248 - - - -  6,665,183
Claims & Other
  Expenses Recovered  964 - - - - -  (4,553)  (3,601,536) -       (3,605,125)
Acquisition Cash
  flows received (459,137) - - - - - - - - (459,137)

Total Cash Flows 6,186,206 -  7,556 -  13,248 -  (4,553)  (3,601,536) -  2,600,921

Foreign Currency
  Translation Difference 284  (1,053) - - - - -  (7,770)  (354) (8,893)

Net Balance
  as at 31 December 2025 477,139  10,992  (7,611)  10,783  (2,396)  6,414  16,911  3,834,298  181,377  4,527,907

Closing Reinsurance of
  Contract Assets 1,111,653  10,992  (7,609)  10,783  9,575  5,087  14,839  3,718,858  175,017  5,049,195
Closing Reinsurance of
  Contract Liabilities (634,514) -  (2) -  (11,971)  1,327  2,072  115,440  6,360  (521,288)

Net Balance of Reinsurance
Contract assets  as at
31 December 2025 477,139  10,992  (7,611)  10,783  (2,396)  6,414  16,911  3,834,298  181,377  4,527,907
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Reinsurance contracts for remaining (ARC) coverage & asset for incurred claims (AIC) for reinsurance contracts as on 31 December 2024 (continued)

31 December 2024
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Opening Balance of Reinsurance
Contract Assets  1,407,979  652  2,399  3,718  7,998  3,468  13,360  1,986,539  96,011  3,522,124
Opening Balance Reinsurance
Contract Liabilities  (905,895) -  (10,322) -  (21,098) - - - -  (937,315)

Net opening position of reinsurance
  contracts assets on
    1 January 2024  502,084  652  (7,923)  3,718  (13,100)  3,468  13,360  1,986,539  96,011  2,584,809

Reinsurance Expenses  (5,558,893)  (652)  (5,551) -  (4,511) - - - -       (5,569,607)

Incurred Claims and other directly
  attributable expense - - - - -  (641)  12,780  5,489,579  135,295  5,637,013
Amortisation of Insurance
  Acquistion Cash Flows 315,218 - - - - - - - -  315,218
Changes related to past service
  - adjustment to LIC - - - - -  (7)  (4,679)  (245,801)  (37,950)  (288,437)
Claims Recovered (Loss Recovery) -  4,347  (230)  5,053  (211)  3,182 - - -  12,141

Net (expenses)/ income from
  reinsurance contracts held (5,243,675)  3,695  (5,781)  5,053  (4,722)  2,534  8,101  5,243,778  97,345  106,328
Finance income from
  Reinsurance Contracts held (PL) - -  (118) -  156  474 -  54,094  (133)  54,473

Total changes to statement of
Profit and loss  (5,243,675)  3,695  (5,899)  5,053  (4,566)  3,008  8,101  5,297,872  97,212  160,801
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Reinsurance contracts for remaining (ARC) coverage & asset for incurred claims (AIC) for reinsurance contracts as on 31 December 2024 (continued)

31 December 2024
Amounts in AED'000

Remaining coverage Remaining Coverage Remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims
- PAA - VFA - GMM -PAA

LIC for Present
Contracts value Risk adj for

Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss Excl. loss Loss not under for future non-financial
component component component component component component PAA cashflows risk Total

Cash flows
Premiums paid  5,705,157 -  4,649 -  6,655 - - - -  5,716,461
Claims & Other Expenses Recovered - - - - - -  (6,391)  (3,212,596) -       (3,218,987)
Acquisition Cash Flows received (355,167) - - - - - - - -  (355,167)

Total Cash Flows  5,349,990 -  4,649 -  6,655 -  (6,391)  (3,212,596) -  2,142,307

Foreign Currency
  Translation Difference  15,206  309 - - - - -  33,702  782  49,999

Net Balance
  as at 31 December 2024 593,193  4,038  (9,173)  8,771  (11,011)  6,476  15,070  4,038,113  192,441  4,837,918

Closing Reinsurance of
  Contract Assets 1,320,342  4,038  3,534  8,771  9,882  6,476  15,070  4,038,113  192,441  5,598,667
Closing Reinsurance of
  Contract Liabilities (727,149) -  (12,707) -  (20,893) - - - -  (760,749)

Net Balance of Reinsurance
Contract assets  as at
31 December 2024  593,193  4,038  (9,173)  8,771  (11,011)  6,476  15,070  4,038,113  192,441  4,837,918
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of measurement component of Reinsurance contract balances not measured under the PAA

31 December 2025 Present value Risk adj. for
of future non-financial
cashflows risk CSM Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Opening Reinsurance contract liabilities (33,600) - -  (33,600)
Opening Reinsurance contract assets 25,663  932  17,138  43,733

Net balance as at 1 January 2025 (7,937)  932  17,138  10,133

Changes that relate to current service
CSM recognised for the services provided - -  (3,787)  (3,787)
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
  for the risk expired -  (202) -  (202)
Experience adjustments-relating to
  insurance service expenses (3,057) - -  (3,057)

(3,057)  (202)  (3,787)  (7,046)

Changes that relate to future service
Contracts initially recognised in the period (2,330)  234  3,000  904
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM (3,415)  (94)  4,886  1,377

(5,745)  140  7,886  2,281

Changes that relate to past service
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims 1,840 - -  1,840

1,840 - -  1,840

Net (expense)/ income from reinsurance
  contracts held (6,962)  (62)  4,099  (2,925)

Finance income/ (expenses) from reinsurance
  contracts held (150)  51  741  642

Total amounts recognised in PL (7,112)  (11)  4,840  (2,283)

Cash flows
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions 20,804 - -  20,804
Recoveries from reinsurance (4,553) - -  (4,553)

Total cash flows 16,251 - -  16,251

Net balance as at 31 December 2025 1,202  921  21,978  24,101

Closing Reinsurance Contract Assets 32,675 - -  32,675
Closing Reinsurance Contract Liabilities (31,473)  921  21,978  (8,574)

Net balance as at 31 December 2025 1,202  921  21,978  24,101
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16 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of measurement component of Reinsurance contract balances not measured under the PAA

31 December 2024 Present value Risk adj. for
of future non-financial

cashflows risk CSM Total
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Opening Reinsurance contract assets (31,420)  -  -  (31,420)
Opening Reinsurance contract liabilities 16,466  333  14,143 30,942

Net balance as at 1 January 2024  (14,954)  333  14,143  (478)

Changes that relate to current service
CSM recognised for the services provided  -  -  (2,607)  (2,607)
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
  for the risk expired  -  (70)  -  (70)
Experience adjustments-relating to
  insurance service expenses  (1,642)  -  -  (1,642)

 (1,642)  (70)  (2,607)  (4,319)

Changes that relate to future service
Contracts initially recognised in the period (2,185)  72  3,105  992
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM 4,348  577  1,877  6,802

2,163  649  4,982  7,794

Changes that relate to past service
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims  1,711  -  -  1,711

 1,711  -  -  1,711

Net (expense)/ income from reinsurance
  contracts held  2,232  579  2,375  5,186

Finance income/ (expenses) from reinsurance
  contracts held  (127)  19  620  512

Total amounts recognised in PL  2,105  598  2,995  5,698

Cash flows
Premiums paid net of ceding commissions 11,303  -  -  11,303
Recoveries from reinsurance (6,389)  -  -  (6,389)

Total cash flows  4,914  -  -  4,914

Net balance as at 31 December 2024 (7,935)  931  17,138  10,134

Closing Reinsurance Contract Assets 25,665  931  17,138  43,734
Closing Reinsurance Contract Liabilities (33,600)  - -  (33,600)

Net balance as at 31 December 2024  (7,935)  931  17,138  10,134
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17 SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000
Issued and fully paid 5,000,000 shares of AED 100 each
  (2024: 5,000,000 shares of AED 100 each) 500,000 500,000

18 RESERVES

Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Group’s Articles of Association, the Group has resolved not to increase the statutory above an
amount equal to 25% of it's paid up capital. Accordingly, no transfer to statutory reserve has been made during the
period. The reserve can be used for any purpose to be decided by the shareholders upon the recommendation of the
Board of Directors.

Legal reserve
'In accordance with the Federal Law no. (2) of 2015 ("the Law") and the Group’s Articles of Association, 10% of the
profit for the year is required to be transferred to the legal reserve. The Group may resolve to discontinue such
transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the paid-up share capital which occurred in 2016. The reserve is not available
for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the law.

Exceptional loss reserve
'For UAE operations, an amount equal to 10% of the net underwriting income for the year is to be transferred to an
exceptional loss reserve to ensure that the Group has sufficient solvency to meet exceptional, non-recurring claims
which may arise in future years.

'For Oman operations, an amount equal to 10% of the outstanding claims (non-life) for the year and 1% of gross
premiums for life assurance is transferred to a contingency loss reserve to ensure that the Group has sufficient
solvency to meet exceptional, non-recurring claims which may arise in future years for the Oman branch.

During the year 2025, an amount of AED 43,532 thousand (YE 2024: AED 26,650 thousand) has been transferred to
exceptional loss reserve.

General reserve
Transfers to the general reserve are made on the recommendation of the Board of Directors. This reserve may be used
for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Reinsurance risk reserve
In accordance with Article (34) to Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019, insurance
companies incorporated in the State and licensed by the Insurance Authority shall bind in the preparation of its annual
consolidated financial statements and its final accounts to allocate an amount equal to 0.5% (five per thousand) of the
total reinsurance premiums ceded by them in all classes in order to create a provision for the probability of failure of
any of the reinsurers with whom the Group deals to pay what is due to the Group or default in its financial position.
The provision shall be accounted year after year based on the reinsurance premiums ceded and may not be disposed
of without the written approval of the Director General. The Director General may agree to cease these allocations
when the accumulated amount reaches an acceptable limit. Accordingly, an amount of AED 32,859 thousand (YE
2024 AED 30,127 thousand) has been recorded in equity as a reinsurance risk reserve during the year ended
31 December 2025

Fair value investments reserve
This reserve records fair value changes on financial assets measured at FVOCI.
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18 RESERVES (continued)

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Capital reserve
'The capital reserve has created against additional shares of Orient Takaful,Egypt and Orient Takaful, UAE purchased
at a price lower than the book value.

19 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Net profit after tax 836,252 731,223
Less: Attributable to non- controlling interests (15,268) (20,405)

Profit attributable to shareholders 820,984 710,818

31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 5,000,000 5,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company (AED) 164.20  142.16

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the owners of the Company
by the number of weighted average shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share
is equivalent to basic earnings per share as the Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact earnings
per share when executed.

20 DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Dividend of AED 80 per share (totaling AED 400 million) relating to the year 2024 was declared upon approval of
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 8th April 2025.  This was paid during April 2025.

For the year ended 31 December 2025, the Board of directors has proposed a cash dividend of AED 100 per share
amounting to AED 500 million (2024: AED 400 million). This is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting to be held during 2026
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21 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2025, guarantees, other than those relating to claims for which provisions are held, amounting to
AED 29,649 thousand (31 December 2024: AED 26,815 thousand), had been issued on behalf of the Group by its
banker in the ordinary course of business.

The Group, in common with the majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. Based
on independent legal advice, management does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have an impact
on the Group's profit or financial condition.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the
Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms
of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Gross written premium (Insurance revenue) 329,222 331,492
Administrative expenses (Insurance service expenses) 89,416 57,337
Cost of repair of vehicles related to claims
(Insurance service expenses) 174,209 83,974
Interest income 11,860  48,341
Dividends received (other investment income) 140,691  123,667

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Investment Securities 2,647,353 2,080,685
Deposits with Banks 4,411 154,661
Amounts due from related parties 110,757 109,981
Amounts due to related parties 56,680 74,843
Related party cash at bank 138 3,421

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Short term benefits 47,844 44,595
Employees' end of service benefits      2,315 1,599

Total 50,159 46,194

As at 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024, amounts due from related parties were not impaired. The impairment
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related parties and the
market in which the related party operates.
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23 INSURANCE REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2025
General Life Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Contracts not measured under PAA
Expected incurred claims and other expenses after
loss component allocation - 38,256  38,256
Changes in risk adjustment for non-financial risk -  2,373  2,373
CSM recognised in the year for the service provided - 23,379  23,379
Insurance acquisition cashflow recovery - 16,866  16,866

- 80,874  80,874

Contracts measured under PAA
Insurance revenue 8,842,952  301,792 9,144,744

Total insurance revenue 8,842,952  382,666  9,225,618

For the year ended 31 December 2024
General Life Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Contracts not measured under PAA
Expected incurred claims and other expenses after
loss component allocation -  48,481  48,481
Changes in risk adjustment for non-financial risk - 2,372 2,372
CSM recognised in the year for the service provided -  22,249  22,249
Insurance acquisition cashflow recovery -  11,442  11,442

- 84,544  84,544

Contracts measured under PAA
Insurance revenue 7,260,457  251,369 7,511,826

Total insurance revenue  7,260,457  335,913  7,596,370

24 INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Contracts measured Contracts measured
Under PAA   (VFA and GMM) Total
AED’000’ AED’000’ AED’000’

Incurred claims and other directly attributable expense (5,395,536) (180,547) (5,576,083)
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows (1,068,552) (16,864) (1,085,416)
Changes that relate to past service -adjustments to the LIC 848,780 145,935 994,715
Changes in Onerous Liability
and reversal of such losses (24,924) (1,299) (26,223)

(5,640,232)  (52,775)  (5,693,007)
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24 INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Contracts measured Contracts measured
Under PAA   (VFA and GMM) Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Incurred claims and other directly attributable expense (6,951,544) (193,448) (7,144,992)
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows (714,405) (11,443) (725,848)
Changes that relate to past service -adjustments to the LIC 378,452 164,997 543,449
Changes in Onerous Liability
and reversal of such losses (5,076) (5,613) (10,689)

 (7,292,573)  (45,507)  (7,338,080)

25 NET INSURANCE FINANCE RESULTS

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Insurance Finance Expense
Interest accreted to insurance contracts using current financial assumptions (146,016) (78,804)
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions (1,022) 2,885
Difference in increase in liability for incurred claims RA 501 156
Fair value movement of Unit link product measured under VFA (68,508) (87,683)

Total (215,045) (163,446)

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Reinsurance Finance Income
Interest accreted to insurance contracts using current financial assumptions 114,128 57,145
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions 741 (2,540)
Difference in increase in liability for incurred claims RA (337) (132)

Total 114,532 54,473
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26 OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Dividend income 141,934 124,024
Foreign exchange gain or loss 5,610 44,095
Movement in impairment on bank deposits and investment securities

(7,044) (10,425)

Total 140,500 157,694

27 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Unit linked management fees 43,846 24,512
Unit linked surrender charges 6,070 4,244
Other operating income 1.929 -

Total 51,845 28,756

The Group charges management fees from  its customers for the initial set-up of the investment contract and the
on-going management services at an agreed percentage of premium on timely basis, particularly for single premium
contracts and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

28 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Staff cost 39,266 37,801
Depreciation 20,417 9,322
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs (note 12) 27,734 19,757
Others 19,109 20,192

Total 106,526 87,072
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29 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The solvency regulations identify the required Solvency Margin to be held on consolidated basis in addition to
insurance liabilities.

As per Article (8) of Section 2 of the financial regulations issued for insurance companies issued by the CBUAE
(formerly the “Insurance Authority”), the Group has to maintain a solvency margin. The Group has incorporated in
its policies and procedures the necessary procedures to ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations.

The table below summarises the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency Capital
Requirement of the Group and the total capital held to meet these solvency margins as defined in the Regulations and
Circular No. CBUAE/BIS/2025/6143 of CBUAE dated 12 November 2025.

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 1,319,930 1,061,126
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 612,611 456,716
Basic Own Funds 3,556,969 2,828,471
MCR Solvency Margin Surplus 3,456,969 2,728,471
SCR Solvency Margin Surplus 2,237,039 1,767,345
MGF Solvency Margin Surplus 2,944,359 2,371,756

Above numbers are based on eforms and are unaudited and unreviewed.

In accordance with Circular No. CBUAE/BIS/2025/6143 dated 12 November 2025, the assets which are not in the
Group’s name should not be considered as admissible in regulatory statement of financial position. In the reported
solvency figures as at 31 December 2025, mentioned above, investments amounting to AED 21.3 million, which are
not held in the name of the company have not been considered in calculating the admissible assets.
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30 SEGMENT INFORMATION

General insurance Life insurance Total

For the year For the year For the year
ended 31 December ended 31 December ended 31 December

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000 AED '000

Insurance service result from insurance contracts issued
(Insurance revenue less insurance service expenses) 3,447,215 172,687 85,396 85,604 3,532,611 258,291

Net (expense)/income from reinsurance contracts held (2,977,679) 127,470 (38,892) (21,143) (3,016,571) 106,327

Insurance service result 469,536 300,157 46,504 64,461 516,040 364,618

Net investment result 573,950 600,457
Net insurance finance expense (100,513) (108,973)
Other operating income 51,845  28,756
Other operating expenses (106,526) (87,072)

Profit before tax 934,796  797,786
Income tax expense (98,160) (66,563)
Deferred tax (384) -

Profit after tax 836,252 731,223

Geographical disclosure is not presented as majority of the revenue is earned from UAE.
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30 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

31 December 2025

Amounts in AED '000 Non-Life Life
insurance insurance Total

Segment assets 13,970,196  3,303,787  17,273,983

Segment liabilities 8,239,328 2,874,946 11,114,274

31 December 2024

Amounts in AED '000 Non-Life Life
insurance insurance Total

Segment assets  13,068,076  2,603,191  15,671,267

Segment liabilities  8,183,285  2,280,653 10,463,938

31 GROSS INSURANCE PREMIUM

As per the Central Bank of UAE reporting requirements, the following disclosures are provided which are not
prepared under IFRS 17.

31 December 2025
Amounts in AED '000

Life Insurance Property &
(Without Liability All Types

Medical & Fund Fund Medical (Without of Business
Description Accumulation) Accumulation Insurance Medical) Combined

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)=(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)

Direct Written Premiums  1,302,603 - 4,784,841  3,652,428 9,739,872

Assumed Business - - - - -
Foreign - - - 66,928  66,928
Local 24,986 - 46,086 903,120 974,192

Total Assumed Business 24,986 - 46,086  970,048 1,041,120

Gross Written Premiums  1,327,589 - 4,830,927  4,622,476 10,780,992
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31 GROSS INSURANCE PREMIUM  (continued)

31 December 2024
Amounts in AED '000

Life Insurance Property &
(Without Liability All Types

Medical & Fund Fund Medical (Without of Business
Description Accumulation) Accumulation Insurance Medical) Combined

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)=(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)

Direct Written Premiums  1,021,899 - 4,057,262  3,114,504 8,193,665

Assumed Business - - - - -
Foreign - - - 23,012  23,012
Local 39,058 - 81,662 702,782  823,502

Total Assumed Business  39,058 - 81,662  725,794  846,514

Gross Written Premiums  1,060,957 -  4,138,924  3,840,298  9,040,179

32 CORPORATE TAX

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released Federal Decree-Law No. 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of
Corporations and Businesses (Corporate Tax Law or the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax (CT) regime in the
UAE. The CT regime has become effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023. The Cabinet of
Ministers Decision No. 116 of 2022 (widely accepted to be effective from 16 January 2023) specified the threshold
of taxable income to which the 0% UAE CT rate would apply, and above which the 9% UAE CT rate would apply.
It is widely considered that this would constitute ‘substantive enactment’ of the UAE CT Law for the purposes of
IAS 12, the objective of which is to prescribe the basis for accounting for Income Taxes.

Current taxes should be measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities by
reference to tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted, by the end of the any reporting period.
Since the Group is expected to pay tax in accordance with the provision of the UAE CT Law on its operational results
with effect from 1 January 2024, current taxes have been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for
the period beginning from 1 January 2025.

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) has issued the Global Anti-Base Erosion
(GloBE) Model Rules, which mandate a minimum tax rate of 15% per jurisdiction (Pillar Two). Various countries
have either enacted or are in the process of enacting tax legislation to fully or partially comply with Pillar Two. The
United Arab Emirates, where the Group's Ultimate Parent Entity is situated, has substantively enacted the Cabinet
Decision No. 142 of 2024 on the Imposition of Top-up Tax on Multinational Enterprises. The Group falls within the
scope of these rules from 1 January 2025 and is currently assessing its exposure to these rules.

There is uncertainty regarding whether the Pillar Two model rules create additional temporary differences, whether
deferred taxes should be remeasured for the Pillar Two model rules, and which tax rate should be used to measure
deferred taxes. In response to this uncertainty, the IASB and AASB issued amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ on
23 May 2023 and 27 June 2023, respectively. These amendments introduce a mandatory temporary exception to the
requirements of IAS 12, under which a company does not recognize or disclose information about deferred tax assets
and liabilities related to the OECD/G20 BEPS Pillar Two model rules. The Group applied this temporary exception
as of 31 December 2025.
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32 CORPORATE TAX (continued)

As the Group’s consolidated revenues is more than EUR 750 million, it is within the scope of the Pillar Two model
rules. The Group has performed an assessment of its potential exposure to Pillar Two income taxes based on financial
information for the constituent entities in the Group. The Group continues to follow Pillar Two legislative
developments, as further countries enact the Pillar Two model rules, to evaluate the potential future impact on its
consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows beginning.

Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income:

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Current income tax expense 98,160 66,563
Deferred taxes 384 -

Total 98,544 66,563

31 December 31 December
2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Current income tax expense 67,871 66,563
Domestic minimum top up tax 30,289 -

Total 98,160 66,563

Statement of financial position
31 December 31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Income tax payable 103,868 59,786
Deferred tax liabilities 103,645 51,769
Deferred tax asset 9,626 8,368

Tax reconciliation
31 December 31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Profit before tax 934,796 797,786

At United Arab Emirates' statutory income tax rate of 9% 78,657 77,152
Domestic minimum top up tax 30,289 -
Effect of standard exemption (68)                           (68)
Income not subject to tax (12,054) (10,572)
Other Non UAE tax adjustments 1,336 51

Current tax charge 98,160 66,563
Movement in deferred tax 384 -

Total tax expenses recognized in profit and loss 98,544 66,563

Effective tax rate 11.28% 8.34%
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32 CORPORATE TAX (continued)

The Group calculates the period income tax expense using the tax rate that would be applicable to the expected annual
earnings. The Group entities operate in the Sultanate of Oman, Egypt, Syria, Turkey and Sri Lanka and are subject to
income tax in these countries. Effective tax rate represents average tax rate for Group.

33 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Subsidiary Country of incorporation 2025 2024

Arab Orient, Syria Syria 60% 60%
Orient Takaful, Egypt Egypt 20% 20%
Orient Takaful, UAE Emirates 4.22% 4.22%

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest

Subsidiary Country of incorporation 2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Arab Orient, Syria Syria (179) 134
Orient Takaful, Egypt Egypt 52,070 36,815
Orient Takaful, UAE Emirates 17,577 14,332

Total 69,468 51,281

Profit allocated to material non-controlling interest

Subsidiary Country of incorporation 2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Arab Orient, Syria Syria (501) (409)
Orient Takaful, Egypt Egypt 12,523 18,056
Orient Takaful, UAE Emirates 3,246 2,758

Total 15,268 20,405

34 AUDIT FEES

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000

Audit of the Group 2,419 1,984

Total 2,419 1,984
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35            SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

There are no social contributions made during the year that needs to be disclosed in the Consolidated financial
statements.

36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of
authorisation of these consolidated financial statements.

37 COMPARITIVES

Comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform to current period’s presentation and improve the
quality of information presented. However, there is no material effect on previously reported total assets, total equity,
total liabilities and profit for the year.

31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2024 2024

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
(Audited) (Audited)

Previously Reclassified After
reported reclassification

Other operating income 2,684 26,072 28,756

Other operating expenses (61,000) (26,072) (87,072)

Above balances reflects reclassification of unit linked management fees and surrender fees as other operating income
and commission expenses as other operating expenses in relation to single premium contracts, which were previously
netted off and presented under other operating income.

38 APPROVALS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by Board of Directors and authorized for issue on  2 March
2026.





DDearr Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my privilege to present the
Corporate Governance Report for the year 2025. This document reflects our
ongoing commitment to robust and transparent governance in all aspects
of Orient Insurance PJSC’s operations.

Governance stands as a cornerstone of Orient Insurance PJSC’s
organizational philosophy. We regard governance not just as a set of
policies, but as an integrated corporate culture—one that guides our
strategic thinking, decision-making, and daily interactions. This framework
governs the relationships among shareholders, management, employees,
and all stakeholders, ensuring that every decision is grounded in clear and
transparent standards designed to protect the interests of all parties.

Orient Insurance operates under a governance
framework that clearly outlines the
foundations, responsibilities, and
accountability mechanisms for the Board of
Directors, board committees, executive
management, and all employees. This
structure is designed to promote institutional
discipline, ensure sound strategic decision-
making, enhance stakeholder trust, and
support ongoing development and self-
improvement throughout the organization.

The company is committed to implementing all
corporate governance rules and procedures in
its operations, and continually works to
monitor, develop, and update its governance
practices and internal policies.

To achieve these objectives, Orient Insurance
continuously seeks to adopt governance-
related legislation and remains committed to
upholding both local and international best
practices.

Orient Insurance has also undergone both
regulatory and voluntary reviews to assess its
operational procedures. These evaluations are
aimed at raising the level of corporate
governance practices, achieving the highest
standards of compliance, strengthening risk
management, improving efficiency and
competitive expertise, and protecting the rights
of shareholders and policyholders.

In conclusion, I would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and
appreciation to all my colleagues on the Board
of Directors and to every employee of the
company for their dedication and valuable
contributions toward achieving the company’s
vision.

Omarr Abdullaa All Futtaimm 

Vicee Chairmann 





Orient Insurance (PJSC) part of Al-Futtaim Group  , the leading economic
group of companies. Orient Insurance was established in 1982 and listed
on the Dubai Financial Market. It is subject to the supervision of the
Securities and Commodities Authority and the Central Bank of the
Emirates, and its works are regulated by Federal Decree Law No. (6) of
2025. Regarding central Bank and Financial Institutions and Activities,
and Insurance Business , as well as Federal Decree Law No. (32) of
2021 regarding commercial companies.

The company's main activity is insurance business in its various classes.
The main headquarters is in the Orient Building - Al Badia - Dubai
Festival City - Dubai, United Arab Emirates, in addition to a network of
branches in the United Arab Emirates, as well as in the Sultanate of
Oman , the Kingdom of Bahrain and Kingdom of Saudia Arabia . Orient
provides its insurance services electronically.

Orient Insurance (a public joint stock) carries out insurance business in 8
countries (United Arab Emirates - Sultanate of Oman - Kingdom of
Bahrain – Kingdom of Saudia Arabia - Arab Republic of Egypt - Syria -
Turkey - Sri Lanka), and these countries are located on 3 different
continents.

Orient Insurance enjoys the highest credit rating, as it received an A+
rating from the S&P, and an a+ rating from the AM.best, which is the
highest rating for an insurance company in the Middle East. Over the
years, Orient has been able to take the lead in the insurance market in
the country. United Arab Emirates in insurance income and net profits



Regarding the Central Bank,

Regulation of Financial Institutions

and Activities, and Insurance

Business

•

•

•

CORPORATEE GOVERNANCEE 
REGULATIONN FORR 
INSURANCEE COMPANIESS ,, 
CBUAEE circularr Noo 244 off 20222 



Driven by the company’s steadfast
commitment to implementing best
practices in corporate governance
and promoting the principles of
transparency, accountability, and
institutional discipline, the
company continued in 2025 to
implement a comprehensive
governance system. This system
aims to ensure the soundness of
strategic decisions, protect
shareholders’ rights, and
strengthen internal controls and
risk management. .

FFirst:: Boardd off Directorss Meetingss 
and Supervisoryy Functionss 
The Board of Directors held Nine  
(9) regular meetings during 2025,
during which the Board fulfilled its
supervisory and strategic duties in
accordance with its approved
mandates. The following topics,
among others, were discussed in
these meetings: .
• Reviewing and approving

quarterly and annual financial
statements, reflecting

Second:: Auditt Committeee Activities 
The Audit Committee held its periodic
meetings during the year and
undertook the following tasks, among
others:
• Approving the annual internal audit

plan and monitoring its
implementation. .

• Reviewing the results of internal
audit work and ensuring that
observations and recommendations
are addressed according to
approved timelines

• Reviewing anti-money laundering
and financial crime reports and
ensuring the effectiveness of related
compliance and control systems. .

• The committee’s work contributed to
strengthening the internal control
environment and ensuring the
accuracy of financial reports. .

• Third:: Riskk Committeee Activities 
The Risk Committee continued its
supervisory role through regular
meetings, during which it: :
• Discussed the risk register and

reviewed the assessment of major
risks facing the company. .

• . .

• the Board’s emphasis on
accuracy and integrity in financial
disclosure. Approving the
company’s overall strategy,
financial and operational plans,
and monitoring their
implementation to achieve the
approved objectives. .

• Discussing and approving
recommendations from Board
committees to ensure the
integration of roles between the
Board and its committees. .

• Reviewing and thoroughly
discussing related party
transactions to ensure their
compliance with approved
regulatory frameworks and
governance principles, and
approving them in accordance
with the established procedures.
.

• The regularity and effectiveness
of Board meetings reflected a
high level of commitment and
responsibility in fulfilling its
assigned duties. .

•Approved risk mitigation
procedures and plans and
monitored their implementation
•Approved the company’s risk
appetite related to investments in
alignment with the company’s
strategy and risk tolerance
capabilities. (Risk Appetite) . .
Fourthh :: Investmentt Committeee 
The Investment Committee held
four (4) meetings, during which it
discussed the company’s
investments and ways to
maximize profitability.
Fifthh : Nominationss Committeee 
The Nominations and
Remuneration Committee held
one meeting, where it discussed
the recruitment, training,
localization, and remuneration
plans.
Sixx :: Generall Assemblyy Meetingg 
The annual General Assembly
meeting was held on 04/08/2025,
during which several important
resolutions were adopted,
including the following:. .



SSevenn :: Policyy Approvall andd Regulatoryy 
Frameworkk Enhancementt 
In 2025, the Board of Directors approved
several policies and regulatory
procedures aimed at developing the
institutional work environment and
strengthening compliance with regulatory
requirements and professional best
practices. .

Eightt :: Boardd Performancee Evaluationn 
As part of the continuous pursuit of
corporate performance improvement, a
comprehensive internal evaluation of the
Board’s performance was conducted,
both at the individual member level and
collectively. The evaluation measured
the level of activity and effective
participation, compliance with
governance requirements, and the extent
of contribution to achieving the
company’s strategic objectives. .
This approach confirms the company’s
commitment to enhancing the
effectiveness and efficiency of its Board
of Directors to achieve the interests of
shareholders and stakeholders

Ninthh :: Generall Proceduress 
1- The company’s executive management
met with members of the internal audit,
investment, and risk committees, and
followed up on the committees stemming
from the Board of Directors regarding the
risk management policy adopted by the
company. The effectiveness of this policy
was verified, which contributed to an
increase in technical profits.
2- In 2025, the company continued to
conduct internal training sessions for its
employees to explain the provisions and
regulations of corporate governance and
the relevant organizational decisions.
3- The company has ensured transparency
in the timing and methods of financial
disclosures, fully complying with all rules
and decisions of the Securities and
Commodities Authority and the Dubai
Financial Market.
4- The company is committed to preparing
the governance and integrated reports for
2024, ensuring that they include the items
listed in the annual governance report
template issued by the Securities and
Commodities Authority, as well as the
requirements of the Insurance Companies
Governance Decision issued by the Central
Bank , All disclosure requirements in the

corporate governance system are
considered, so that the report covers
key information about the company,
organizational structures, governance,
policies, related party transactions,
Board and committee composition,
attendance records, and compensation
paid to Board members and senior
management. The company also
ensures that the governance, annual,
and all financial reports are completed
and presented to the General
Assembly members well in advance of
the meeting, enabling the Assembly to
review and make informed decisions.
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Deepak Shantilal Parekh 
Board Member Non-Executive – Independent Resigned 

Abdullah Mohammed Al Karam
Board Member
Non-Executive - Independent

Member of the Board of Directors of Orient
since 2025. Holds a Ph.D. in Computer
Engineering from the University of South
Carolina in the United States of America, and
has practical experience Extensive in
technology, education and human resources
Dr. Abdulla Al Karam has held several positions
in the UAE, In addition to membership of many
international councils

Other positions and memberships

Member of Board of Director of commercial Bank of Dubai

Member of the Board of Directors of Dubai Cares,

Member of Dubai Sports Council

Member of Dubai Media Council.

Jacques Rocher
Board Member 
Non-Executive – Independent

Resigned 

Previous positions and memberships 
Director General of the Knowledge and Human Development Authority
(KHDA) Dubai (2006 - 2025),
Vice President and Secretary General of the Hamdan Bin Rashid Al
Maktoum Award for Distinguished Academic Performance,
Chairman of the Dubai Committee for Government Human Resources.
Member of the Board of Directors of the Knowledge Fund.
Member of the Board of Trustees of the Dubai Future Foundation.
Member of the Higher Committee for the Protection of the Rights of
Persons of Determination in the Emirate of Dubai
Member of the UAE Human Resources Development Council in Dubai.
Member of the Council of the United Arab Emirates University



Mr. Abdullah Hamad Al Futtaim         Chairman None None None

Mr. Omar Abdullah Al Futtaim Vice Chairman None None None

Mrs. Mira Omar Al Futtaim Director None None None

Miss. Shamsa Ali Al Futtaim Director None None None

Dr. Abdulla Mohamed 
Abdulrahaman Alkaram

Director None None None

Anthony David Harris

Elected 09/10/2025

Director None None None

Christopher John Pleasant

Elected 09/10/2026

Director None None None

Deepak Shantilal Parekh 
(Resigned) on 01/04/2025

Director None None None

Mr.Jacques Richier(Resigned) on 
01/07/2025

Director None None None



The Company's board assigned the company's executive management to
assume the following duties and competences:

1. All capacities required for assuming the burdens of management and the
practical and technical requirements of the company, including, without
limitation:

- Daily management of the company
- Arrangement of annual balance sheet
- Creating the required insurance of the company
- Appointment and dismissal of employees, consultants and

contractors and defining their duties and remunerations inside
and outside the state.



Sr Statement of related parties Clarifying the nature of relationship Details of transaction Value of transaction (000)

1 Al Futtaim Group, Al Futtaim Motors
Mother Company

Sister Company   
Gross Written Premium

329,222

2 Al Futtaim Group Mother Company Administrative expenses 89,416 

3 Al Futtaim motor / Trading Enterprises, Motor
agencies Sister companies Cost of repair of vehicles related to claims

174,209

4 EIB /CBD Sister Company Affiliate Company Interest income
11,860 

5 EIB /CBD Sister Company Affiliate Company Dividends 140,691 

6 EIB /CBD Sister Company Affiliate Company Investment securities 2,647,353

7 AMW Capital leasing & Financae  Sister company Deposits with banks
4,411

8 Al Futtaim Group Mother Company Amounts due from related parties
110.757

9 Al Futtaim Group Mother Company: Amounts due to related parties
56,680

10
EIB Sister Company

Cash in current account ,138



President 18/10/1982

Deputy CEO 26/04/2021

Chief Technical Officer 06/03/2012

Chief Health Insurance Officer   19/08/2008

Chief Marketing Officer 09/05/2006

Chief  Group Finance Officer 12/10/2015

Board of  
Directors 

Group President 

Chief 
Financial 

Officer 

Deputy CEO

Chief 
Medical 
Officer 

Chief Technical 
Officer 

Chief Sales Officer 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Audit 
Committee 

Internal Audit 
Department Compliance 

Department 

Risk Committee 

Risk Department 

Investment 
Committee 

Orient's rewards policy is based on the principles of competitiveness through the
adoption of a "pay-for-performance" approach, supported by incentive-based
performance management systems. The policy encourages outstanding performance,
aims to enhance effective risk management, and increases employee motivation. The
total salaries and bonuses paid to the company's senior management during 2025
amounted to AED 14,809,874.



In 2025, the company paid AED 2,419,000 in external auditor fees for

quarterly and annual audits, financial statement verification,

attendance at the annual AGM to review the company’s budget,

compliance with company regulations, tax invoice review, and related

regulatory matters.

Name of Auditing Company
Partner   

E&Y

Number of years spent as external
auditor of the company

3

Number of years o 3

Total auditing fees of financial
statements for 2025 (AED)

2,419.000

The fees and costs of special services
other than auditing of financial
statement in 2025

Regulatory Returns, Tax related
works & Others

Details and nature of other services
provided

Regulatory Returns, Tax related 
works & Others

Statement of the other special services
submitted  by another external auditor
than the company's auditor during 2025

None 



Mr. Christopher John Pleasant , 

1 Mr. Christopher John Pleasant

( replacement of Mr. . Deepak Shantilal
Parekh  - resigned)      

Chairman Independent non-executive

2 Mr. Anthony David harries ( replacement of
Mr.Jacques Richier )

Member Independent non-executive

3 Dr. Abdulla Mohamed Abdulrahman Alkaram Member Independent non-executive



Agenda Date of meeting Meeting No 

Review of the internal audit report- review of the
annual fiscal year of 2024 appointment of auditor
for 2025 review the risk management policy ,
review IT policy , review evolution plan ,
appointment of external auditor for Oman branch
review Oman branch activities , review Bahrain
branch activities.

05/03/2025First meeting

Review the company's financial evaluation-review
the evaluation of rating agencies - review the
financial statements for the first quarter of 2025,
review internal audit policy for Muscat branch
Implementation of IFRS 17 .

12/05/2025Second meeting

Review of the internal audit report- Review  the
financial statements for the second quarter of 2025,
review CBUAE report for implementation of IFRS
17

06/08/2025Third meeting

Review the internal audit report , review internal
audit plan for 2025, review internal audit plan from
Oct 2025 to March 2026 for Oman Branch, , review
internal audit plan from Oct 2025 to March 2026 for
Bahrain Branch,   review the financial statements
for the third quarter of 2025

10/11/2025Fourth meeting

D- Annual Audit Committee Report

1- Significant matters reviewed by the committee
regarding the financial statements and how these
matters were addressed:

The Audit Committee reviewed the annual
financial report for 2024 and found that there
were no changes in accounting policies, no
reservations from the external auditor, and
no material amendments resulting from the
review of the financial statements. The
financial statements were prepared in
accordance with IFRS principles and
regulatory requirements.

2- How the independence and effectiveness of the
external audit process was evaluated, the
approach used to appoint or reappoint the
external auditor, and information about the tenure
of the current audit firm:

Orient’s policy for contracting with the
external auditor is based on governance laws
and guidelines, and includes strict rules for
selecting the auditor to ensure their
independence. The policy prohibits the
external auditor from engaging in practices
such as providing accounting services,
information systems, internal audit, valuation,
consulting, brokerage services, and others.

3- Statement clarifying the committee's
recommendation regarding the appointment,
reappointment, or dismissal of the external
auditor, and reasons for the Board of Directors not
accepting such recommendation:

At its meeting held on March 8, 2025, the
Audit Committee recommended the
reappointment of E&Y, and the Board of
Directors approved the recommendation.

4-- Explanationn off howw thee independencee off thee externall auditorr 
iss ensuredd whenn providing servicess otherr thann auditingg thee 
company'ss accounts:
Thee externall auditorr hass nott providedd anyy additionall servicess 
thatt wouldd conflictt withh theirr rolee ass thee company’ss auditor.. Alll 
advisoryy servicess falll withinn thiss framework.

During the year, the committee discussed reports on
the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management, and found these systems to be effective.

5-- Inn thee eventt anyy deficienciess orr weaknessess inn internall 
controlss orr riskk managementt aree identified,, thee committeee 
immediatelyy evaluatess thee situation,, determiness thee scopee andd 
roott causes,, approvess aa clearr correctivee plann includingg specificc 
procedures,, responsibilities,, andd timeliness too addresss 
weaknessess andd enhancee controls.. Thee committeee alsoo 
monitorss thee implementationn off thesee actionss throughh periodicc 
reportss too ensuree actuall closuree andd improvementt inn thee 
effectivenesss off controll systems.

The committee updates policies and procedures as
needed to prevent recurrence of any deficiencies in the
future.

6-- Confirmationn thatt thee committeee reviewedd alll mediumm andd 
high-riskk reportss issuedd byy internall auditt too determinee iff theyy 
weree duee too significantt failuress orr weaknessess inn internall 
controls.

The committee discussed the risk register at its meeting 
on 05/03/2025 and approved the necessary measures 
to mitigate risks.

7-- Comprehensivee informationn aboutt thee correctivee actionn plann 
inn casee theree aree materiall deficienciess inn riskk managementt andd 
internall controll systems:

No material deficiencies were identified in risk 
management and internal control systems.

8-- Confirmationn thatt thee committeee reviewedd alll transactionss 
conductedd withh relatedd parties,, thee resultingg observationss orr 
outcomes,, andd compliancee withh prevailingg lawss inn thiss regard.

At its meetings held on 05/03/2025 and 06/08/2025, 
the Board discussed transactions with related parties, 
confirmed compliance with relevant governance laws, 
and approved them.



of Mr. , the Risk  Committee Chairman of his responsibility for the Committee system 

at the Company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness

1- Develop and implement a
corporate risk management
governance model
framework, to provide
visibility into all material
risks to which they are or
may be exposed and the
extent to which those risks
are interrelated, at the
company and group level,
as appropriate. This
includes strategies, policies,
processes, procedures and
controls needed to identify,
assess, measure, control,
control and report on risks
and reduce sources of
material risk in a timely
manner. Taking into account
when defining and
assessing material risks the
subject of risk acceptance,
its risk profile, the nature,
size, degree of complexity
and structure of its work
2- Align the company's
strategic objectives with the
company's risk tolerance.

3- Verify the distribution and
allocation of risk management
responsibilities.
4- Oversee risks related to the
Company's business and
operations, including at a
minimum, reserves, asset and
liability management,
investments, liquidity,
reinsurance, risk
concentration, operational
risks, risk mitigation
mechanisms and business
conduct. It should also cover
the risks to be included when
calculating capital adequacy
requirements in accordance
with the financial instructions
of insurance companies,
5- Reduce the effects of these
risks by diversifying its
sources of capital, monitoring
risks and policies applied to
mitigate risk exposure.
6- Develop risk management
tools and monitor the
effectiveness of these roles;



First Meeting 05/03/2025 Review of the Risk Register

Second Meeting 12/05/2025 Review of Risk Management Requirements 
Under the Financial Regulation (Investment 
Exposure Limits, Liquidity Risk Management 
System, Credit Risk Management ) 
Review of Q2 Investment Report

Third Meeting 10/11/2025 Review and Discussion of the Q3 Investment
Report.

7- Develop and implement risk
management strategies and limits,
and determine the level of risk that
the company may wish to take
Follow up on the company's Risk
and Solvency
8-Overseas the Self-Assessment
(ORSA) process by reviewing and
challenging the assessment of key
risks, capital adequacy, and
solvency outcomes, and
recommending the ORSA report to
the Board for approval.
9- Ensure that the company
implements a forward-looking
stress testing program, as part of
its overall risk management
methodology. The stress testing
program should include negative
and extreme scenarios but
reasonable and possible
occurrence, for a set of material
risks, and be proportionate to the
size of the company's exposure to
the risks. The results of the stress
testing program should be reflected
on an ongoing basis in the
company's risk management, to
enable the company to maintain its.

-awareness of the impact of
stress on its financial position,
including contingency planning,
and the company's internal
assessment of capital and
liquidity 10- Ensuring the
dissemination of a culture of
risk within the company through
the rules, values, views and
behaviors of the company that
determine the way in which its
activities related to risk
awareness, risk taking,
management, and controls are
conducted.
11- Comply with regulatory
requirements related to risk
management.
12- General disclosure of
matters related to risk
management.
13- Supervise the performance
and ensure the independence
and effectiveness of the Risk
Management Department



Abdulla Mohamed Abdulrahaman Alkaram

1 Dr. Abdulla Mohamed Abdulrahaman

Alkaram

Chairman Independent  - non-executive

2 Mr. Omar Abdullah Al Futtaim Member Non- Independent -non-

executive

3 Mr. Christopher John Pleasant Member Independent - non-executive





Mr. Omar Abdullah Al Futtaim
Chairman Non- Independent non-executive

Mrs. Mira Omar Al Futtaim Member Non- Independent non-executive

Mrs. Shamsa Ali Al Futtaim  Member Non- Independent non-executive

05/03/2025

12/05/2025

06/08/2025

10/11/2025

1. Establishing an investment and risk management policy that is aligned with the level of risk appetite
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, and reviewing it on an annual basis, including the related
oversight and monitoring mechanisms.

2. Ensuring adequate segregation of duties between execution, recording, authorization, settlement, and
investment-related audit activities.

3. Ensuring that assets are sufficiently diversified and appropriately allocated to enable the Company to
respond efficiently to changing economic conditions, including developments in financial markets, assessing the
impact of abnormal market conditions on its assets, and ensuring asset diversification in a manner aimed at
mitigating concentration risks.

4. Verifying the effectiveness of risk management systems related to investment activities that may
impact the coverage of insurance obligations and capital adequacy.
5. Monitoring the implementation of appropriate procedures to ensure compliance with asset limits and
counterparty exposure limits.
6. Reviewing the creditworthiness assessment of related parties with whom the Company has
significant exposure or transactions.
7. Establishing a policy and framework for stress testing all Company investments, including regular
stress testing across a range of market, investment, operational, social, economic, and regulatory
scenarios, to assess the adequacy of asset allocation limits under different scenarios.
8. Reviewing contingency funding plans to address how current and future insurance obligations would
be met in the event of insufficient assets or liquidity.



•
•

•
•



•
•
•

•









e- A Statement of shareholders distribution by the size equity as of 31/12/2025
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Message from the Group President 

 

At Orient Insurance, we continue our journey with confidence toward a more sustainable 
future, building on a strong legacy of excellence, innovation, and corporate responsibility. 
Our enduring commitment to serving our customers, empowering our employees, and 
strengthening the trust of our partners has been the primary driver of our continued growth 
and leadership in the insurance sector, both within the United Arab Emirates and beyond. 

Over the past year, we have further embedded sustainability as a core pillar of our 
corporate strategy — not as a standalone initiative, but as an integrated approach 
encompassing all aspects of our business. We strengthened our digital transformation 
e orts, reduced resource consumption, and enhanced operational e iciency, reflecting 
our deep awareness of our environmental responsibilities and our role in supporting the 
nation’s transition toward a low-carbon economy. 

The year also witnessed significant progress in strengthening our governance and 
compliance framework. We continued to foster a culture of integrity and transparency by 
updating and activating our Code of Conduct and business ethics policies, and by 
launching comprehensive mandatory training programs for all employees. These programs 
covered sustainability principles, conflict of interest management, data protection, and 
adherence to ethical standards. Our employees’ commitment to these principles reflects 
our belief that sustainable performance begins with responsible corporate behavior. 

As part of our social responsibility, we remained dedicated to supporting community and 
humanitarian initiatives that reflect our core values. From health awareness campaigns 
and Ramadan humanitarian initiatives to direct engagement with various segments of 
society, we firmly believe that our role extends beyond providing insurance services to 
making a positive contribution to the communities in which we operate. 

Our recognition under the “Nafis” Awards for supporting Emiratization and empowering 
national talent marks an important milestone in our journey. This achievement 
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underscores our commitment to developing human capital and investing in Emirati 
competencies, in alignment with the UAE’s vision for a knowledge-based economy. 

We view this report as an additional step toward enhanced disclosure and transparency, 
providing a comprehensive account of how we manage environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG) risks and opportunities, and how we integrate them into our strategic 
decisions, risk management frameworks, and overall corporate performance. 

Our commitment to sustainability is long-term in nature. It is aimed at delivering 
sustainable value to our shareholders, strengthening the confidence of our customers, 
empowering our employees, and contributing to the prosperity of our communities. We 
remain confident that the culture of innovation and responsibility that defines our 
organization will continue to support our path toward sustainable growth and enduring 
value creation. 

Thank you for your continued trust and support. 

With sincere appreciation, 

Omer El Amin 
Group President 
Orient Insurance 
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Awards 

ESG Label 

 Awarded the ESG Label for the Second Consecutive Year 
The Company was recognized by the Dubai Chamber of Commerce in appreciation 
of its excellence in Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) practices for the 
second consecutive year. This recognition reflects our continued commitment to 
integrating sustainability principles into our corporate strategy and operations. 

 Independent Assessment under a Comprehensive Framework 
The Company underwent an independent evaluation conducted by the Dubai 
Chamber, based on an integrated framework aligned with leading international best 
practices. This assessment further validates the strength of our governance 
structure, transparency standards, and sustainability performance. 
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Section One 
Company Overview and Business Model 

1. Company Profile 

Orient Insurance Company is one of the leading insurance providers in the United Arab 
Emirates and a key member of Al-Futtaim Group, one of the region’s most prominent 
diversified investment groups. Since its establishment, the Company has adopted a 
disciplined approach centered on operational excellence, underwriting rigor, innovation, 
and sound corporate governance, enabling it to establish itself as a trusted insurance 
institution capable of delivering sustainable long-term growth. 

Orient o ers a comprehensive range of insurance solutions serving both individuals and 
corporate clients. These include motor insurance, general insurance lines, health 
insurance, life insurance, as well as reinsurance activities, including both facultative and 
treaty reinsurance. 

The Company’s operations are supported by advanced risk management practices, 
e ective internal controls, and a governance framework that promotes transparency, 
accountability, and regulatory compliance. 

Orient’s vision extends beyond achieving strong financial performance. It is equally 
focused on creating sustainable economic, social, and environmental value for all 
stakeholders, in alignment with internationally recognized governance and sustainability 
best practices. 

 

2. Governance Structure 

The Company operates under the oversight of a Board of Directors composed of members 
with diverse professional expertise and experience. The Board is responsible for setting the 
Company’s strategic direction, overseeing performance, and supervising material risks, 
including sustainability and climate-related risks. 

The Board discharges its responsibilities through specialized committees, including: 

 Audit Committee 

 Risk Committee 

 Investment Committee 
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 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

These committees, among other responsibilities, oversee: 

 Review of financial statements and disclosures 

 Assessment of the e ectiveness of internal control systems 

 Supervision of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework 

 Monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations 

 Oversight of developments related to sustainability and climate risks 

 

Periodic reports on emerging risks, including climate-related and regulatory risks, are 
presented to the Board to ensure that ESG considerations are systematically integrated 
into strategic decision-making processes. 

 

3. Business Model 

Orient’s business model is built on creating sustainable value through an integrated 
insurance cycle that includes: 

1. Product design and development 

2. Disciplined underwriting practices 

3. Risk-based pricing 

4. E icient claims management 

5. Reinsurance for risk distribution 

6. Investment management 

7. Digital transformation and operational e iciency enhancement 

The Company integrates sustainability considerations into its business model through: 

 Pricing approaches that reflect forward-looking climate risks 

 Fair and transparent claims management practices 

 Responsible investment policies 

 Transitioning to digital processes to reduce paper consumption 
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 Promoting e icient use of resources 

This integrated model strengthens Enterprise Value Creation by balancing financial returns 
with long-term risk management and reinforcing institutional trust and resilience. 

 

4. Markets of Operation 

The Company operates primarily in the United Arab Emirates, which represents its core 
market. In addition, it maintains branches in Bahrain, Oman, and the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia, as well as sister and a iliated companies in Syria, Turkey, Sri Lanka, and Egypt. 

This geographic footprint enables the Company to diversify revenue streams and distribute 
geographic risk exposure, while maintaining a unified governance framework and 
consistent operational standards across all markets. 

 

5. Value Chain 

The value chain refers to all activities and business relationships that contribute to value 
creation for the Company, beginning with suppliers and business partners, progressing 
through internal operations, and extending to customers and the communities impacted by 
the Company’s services. It encompasses the environmental, social, and governance (ESG) 
impacts, risks, and opportunities arising across these stages. 

At Orient, the value chain includes all activities from product design and underwriting to 
claims management, reinsurance arrangements, and investment management. 
Sustainability principles are embedded throughout each stage through: 

 Assessing environmental and social risks within underwriting processes 

 Ensuring robust protection of customer data and confidentiality 

  policies in dealings with suppliers 

 Promoting transparency and fairness in claims management 

 Selecting reinsurance partners based on professional discipline and sound 
governance standards 

Through this integrated value chain approach, the Company seeks to enhance resilience, 
manage ESG risks proactively, and strengthen long-term value creation. 
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6. Key Stakeholders 

The Company defines its key stakeholders as the parties that influence, or are influenced 
by, its operations. These include: 

 Customers 

 Employees 

 Shareholders 

 Regulators 

 Brokers and business partners 

 Suppliers 

 Local communities 

Orient relies on regular engagement, transparency, and ethical conduct to ensure 
stakeholder expectations are met and to build long-term relationships founded on trust 
and mutual value. 

 

7. Sustainability Strategy and Framework 

Sustainability Vision 

Orient views sustainability as a strategic pillar that underpins its ability to remain resilient 
and grow in a dynamic and evolving environment. The Company’s vision is centered on 
embedding environmental, social, and governance considerations into all strategic and 
operational decision-making processes. 

The Company aims to: 

 Enhance institutional resilience 

 Manage long-term risks 

 Support responsible economic development 

 Empower employees 

 Serve the community 
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Alignment with the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

The Company’s initiatives are aligned with several of the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals, particularly: 

 SDG 3 – Good Health and Well-being (through health awareness initiatives) 

 SDG 5 – Gender Equality 

 SDG 8 – Decent Work and Economic Growth 

 SDG 12 – Responsible Consumption and Production 

 SDG 13 – Climate Action 

 SDG 16 – Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions 

Through these alignments, Orient reinforces its commitment to contributing to broader 
global sustainability objectives while creating long-term stakeholder value. 

 

Alignment with National Strategy 

The Company supports the UAE Net Zero 2050 Strategy and contributes to strengthening 
the UAE’s position as a sustainable financial hub through: 

 Enhancing operational e iciency 

 Strengthening transparency and disclosure practices 

 Promoting responsible finance and investment 

 Participating in corporate sustainability initiatives 

By aligning with national priorities, the Company ensures that its sustainability e orts are 
consistent with the country’s long-term economic and environmental vision. 

 

Reporting Framework 

This report has been prepared with reference to selected disclosures from the Global 
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards. 
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Reporting Boundaries and Scope 

This report covers: 

 Operations within the United Arab Emirates 

 Branches and subsidiaries with material impact 

 The financial year 2025 

 Material topics identified through the materiality assessment process 

The defined scope ensures that disclosures are aligned with the Company’s most 
significant impacts, risks, and opportunities, in accordance with applicable reporting 
standards and regulatory expectations. 

 

8. Governance and Sustainability Management 

Board Oversight 

The Board of Directors holds ultimate responsibility for overseeing material risks, including 
climate-related and sustainability risks. These matters are integrated into the Board’s 
agenda on a regular basis to ensure that ESG considerations are embedded within strategic 
discussions and decision-making processes. 

 

Role of the Risk and Audit Committees 

The Risk Committee is responsible for: 

 Reviewing emerging risks 

 Assessing the impact of climate-related risks 

 Monitoring key risk indicators (KRIs) 

The Audit Committee oversees: 

 Sustainability-related disclosures 

 The e ectiveness of internal control systems 

 Regulatory compliance and reporting obligations 
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Through this committee structure, the Company ensures independent oversight, 
structured risk governance, and accountability across sustainability matters. 

 

Sustainability Management Structure 

Sustainability is managed at the executive level in coordination with the following 
functions: 

 Risk Management 

 Compliance 

 Human Resources 

 Operations 

 Internal Audit 

Policies and practices are also aligned with Al-Futtaim Group directives, including the 
Group Code of Conduct and mandatory training programs. This alignment ensures 
consistency in governance standards, ethical conduct, and sustainability principles across 
the broader Group structure. 

 

Integration of ESG into ERM 

ESG-related risks have been incorporated into the Company’s Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM) framework. This integration includes: 

 Identification of ESG-related risks 

 Assessment of likelihood and impact 

 Development and implementation of mitigation plans 

 Ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting 

By embedding ESG risks within the ERM structure, the Company ensures that 
sustainability-related exposures are systematically assessed and managed alongside 
financial and operational risks. 
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Remuneration Policy and Linkage to Sustainable Performance 

The Company’s remuneration policies consider: 

 Financial performance 

 Governance compliance 

 Ethical conduct 

 Regulatory adherence 

All employees are required to complete Code of Conduct training and sign an annual 
conflict of interest declaration. This reinforces the Company’s commitment to ethical 
behavior, accountability, and responsible performance as foundational elements of 
sustainable value creation. 
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Section Two 
Materiality Assessment 

Assessment Methodology 

During 2025, Orient Insurance conducted an updated review of its materiality assessment 
with the objective of identifying the environmental, social, and governance (ESG) topics 
that have the most significant impact on the Company’s business and its key stakeholders. 

The Company adopted a Double Materiality approach in line with international best 
practices. Each topic was evaluated based on two primary dimensions: 

1. Financial and Strategic Impact – The potential impact of the topic on the 
Company’s financial performance, capital position, and long-term strategic 
objectives. 

2. Impact on Stakeholders and the Environment – The extent to which the 
Company’s activities influence the environment, society, and its key stakeholder 
groups. 

The assessment process included the following steps: 

 Review of the Company’s 2025 strategy and business plan 

 Analysis of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) register 

 Review of regulatory requirements issued by the Central Bank of the UAE 

 Analysis of insurance sector trends regionally and globally 

 Consideration of feedback from key stakeholders 

 Review of the 2024 report to ensure consistency and continuity 

This structured methodology ensures that the Company’s disclosures focus on topics that 
are both financially significant and societally impactful, reinforcing transparency and 
accountability. 
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High-Priority Strategic Material Topics 

Based on the assessment results, the following topics were identified as high-priority 
strategic material issues due to their direct impact on the Company’s sustainability and 
long-term economic value: 

 Climate-related risks and transition risks associated with the shift to a low-carbon 
economy 

 Governance and regulatory compliance 

 Information security and data protection 

 Human capital and Emiratization 

 Responsible investments and ESG-integrated portfolio management 

These topics represent key drivers of Enterprise Value Creation, as they directly influence: 

 The quality and discipline of underwriting practices 

 The stability and resilience of the investment portfolio 

 The Company’s ability to maintain regulatory compliance 

 Corporate reputation and customer trust 

 The sustainability of long-term returns 

By prioritizing these areas, the Company strengthens its financial performance while 
enhancing institutional credibility and long-term competitiveness. 

 

 

Operational Priority Topics 

In addition to strategic priorities, a number of topics were classified as operationally 
material, including: 

 Emissions and energy consumption 

 Occupational health and safety 

 Supply chain management 

 Community engagement 
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The Company continues to monitor these topics closely and is committed to developing 
clear performance indicators to ensure they are managed e ectively and consistently 
across its operations. 
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Section Three 
Management of Sustainability-Related Risks and Opportunities 

Climate-Related Risks 

The Company identifies and manages climate-related risks across multiple dimensions, 
including: 

 Transition risks arising from evolving legislation, regulatory requirements, and 
policy changes associated with the transition to a low-carbon economy. 

 Physical risks resulting from extreme weather events and climate-related 
disruptions. 

 Claims risks stemming from damage to insured assets caused by extreme weather 
events and climate-related catastrophes. 

By proactively assessing these risks, the Company enhances underwriting discipline, 
capital planning resilience, and portfolio stability. 

 

Compliance Risks 

Compliance risks include: 

 Increasing disclosure requirements related to sustainability and climate matters 

 Ongoing developments in regulatory frameworks and supervisory expectations 

The Company closely monitors regulatory developments to ensure timely adaptation and 
full compliance with applicable standards. 

 

Reputational Risks 

Reputational risks may arise from: 

 Governance failures 

 Data breaches or cybersecurity incidents 

 Ethical non-compliance 
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Strong governance, internal controls, and a robust compliance culture are central to 
mitigating such risks and safeguarding stakeholder trust. 

 

Sustainable Business Opportunities 

In parallel with risk management, the Company recognizes sustainability-related 
opportunities, including: 

 Developing insurance products that support sustainability and climate resilience 

 Enhancing operational e iciency through resource optimization 

 Strengthening digital transformation initiatives 

These opportunities contribute to improved cost e iciency, risk-adjusted returns, and long-
term competitiveness. 

 

Scenario Analysis 

The Company is progressively enhancing its climate scenario analysis capabilities to 
assess the potential impact of future economic and regulatory transitions on its business 
model, underwriting practices, and investment portfolio. 

This forward-looking approach supports strategic planning, capital adequacy 
assessments, and long-term resilience. 

 

 

Climate Risk Management within the ERM Framework 

Integration of Climate Risks into Governance and Risk Management 

As part of Orient Insurance Company’s commitment to strengthening institutional 
resilience and long-term sustainability, climate-related risks are systematically integrated 
into the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, in alignment with international best 
practices. 

This integration ensures that climate considerations are embedded within governance 
oversight, risk assessment, and strategic decision-making processes. 

 



 
 

18 | P a g e  
 

First: Identification and Classification of Climate Risks 

The Company adopts a structured approach to identifying climate-related risks within its 
corporate risk register. These include: 

1. Transition Risks 

 Changes in carbon-related or climate disclosure regulations 

 Potential future implementation of carbon pricing mechanisms 

 Shifts in customer behavior toward low-carbon products 

 Evolving expectations from investors and regulatory authorities 

 Reputational risks arising from failure to adapt to the low-carbon transition 

2. Physical Risks 

 Increased frequency and severity of extreme weather events 

 Flood and storm risks and their impact on insurance claims 

 Long-term e ects such as rising temperatures and their impact on insured assets 

3. Claims-Related Risks 

 Increased claims exposure resulting from damage to insured properties caused by 
extreme weather events 

Through this classification, the Company enhances its ability to proactively manage 
underwriting exposures, capital requirements, and portfolio risk concentrations. 

 

Second: Assessment of Impact and Likelihood 

Climate-related risks are evaluated using a standardized risk assessment methodology 
that includes: 

 Probability of occurrence 

 Potential financial impact magnitude 

 Operational impact 

 Impact on regulatory capital and solvency 

 Impact on the Company’s reputation 
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Climate-related risks are classified within the corporate risk matrix according to the 
Company’s approved risk severity levels, ensuring consistency and comparability across 
all risk categories within the ERM framework. 

 

Third: Integration of Climate Risks into Decision-Making 

Climate-related risks are actively considered in key decision-making processes, including: 

 Insurance product design and pricing 

 Underwriting guidelines and risk selection criteria 

 Investment portfolio management 

 Capital planning and solvency management 

 Reinsurance strategy 

 Operational planning and business continuity frameworks 

By embedding climate considerations across these functions, the Company strengthens 
risk-adjusted performance and enhances long-term resilience. 

 

Fourth: Oversight and Supervision 

 Climate-related risks are incorporated into periodic risk reports submitted to 
executive management. 

 The Risk Committee reviews material climate-related exposures and associated 
mitigation strategies. 

 The Board of Directors retains ultimate oversight of the e ectiveness of the overall 
risk management framework, including sustainability and climate-related risks. 

This governance structure ensures accountability, transparency, and alignment with 
regulatory expectations. 

 

Fifth: Continuous Improvement and Capacity Building 

The Company remains committed to enhancing its climate risk management capabilities 
through: 
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 Monitoring local and international regulatory developments related to climate risk 

 Raising awareness across relevant departments regarding emerging climate-related 
exposures 

 Developing Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to measure climate risk exposure 
over time 

 Gradually implementing climate scenario analysis to support strategic planning and 
capital allocation decisions 

Orient’s integrated approach to climate risk management reflects its commitment to 
safeguarding long-term enterprise value, strengthening adaptability to economic and 
environmental transitions, and ensuring the sustainability of its business model in an 
increasingly dynamic environment. 
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Section Four 
Environmental Performance – 2025 

Overview 

During 2025, Orient Insurance continued to strengthen its commitment to reducing its 
environmental footprint, recognizing the role of the insurance sector in supporting the 
transition toward a low-carbon and resource-e icient economy. 

As a service-based organization, the Company’s direct environmental impact is relatively 
limited compared to industrial sectors. However, we believe that environmental 
responsibility is not measured solely by the volume of emissions generated, but by the 
extent to which sustainability considerations are embedded within our business model, 
underwriting decisions, investment strategies, and employee behavior. 

Our environmental performance in 2025 is aligned with: 

 The Company’s corporate sustainability strategy 

 The UAE Net Zero 2050 objectives 

 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 

1. Direct Emissions 

Direct emissions primarily include: 

 Fuel consumption from Company-owned vehicles 

 Backup generators (not applicable) 

During 2025: 

 The Company reinforced its policy on responsible vehicle usage 

 Virtual meetings were encouraged to reduce business travel 

 Fuel consumption was periodically reviewed as part of internal sustainability 
reporting 

These measures support the reduction of operational emissions while promoting e iciency 
and cost optimization. 
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2. Indirect Emissions from Electricity 

Indirect emissions arise primarily from: 

 Electricity consumption at the Company’s head o ice and branch locations 

Key measures implemented include: 

 

 Installation of energy-e icient lighting systems 

 Deployment of smart HVAC control systems 

 Monitoring consumption through digital dashboards 

These initiatives contributed to improving energy e iciency across facilities and enhancing 
real-time visibility over consumption patterns. 

 

3. Other Indirect Emissions 

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) include: 

 Employee air travel 

 Supply chain activities 

 Paper usage and printed materials 

 Outsourced service providers 

 Insurance claims associated with climate-related catastrophes 

Although Scope 3 emissions are more complex to quantify, they represent an important 
component of the Company’s broader environmental footprint. 

During 2025, the Company implemented the following measures: 

 Expanded digital transformation initiatives to reduce paper dependency 

 Integrated environmental considerations into supplier evaluation processes 

 Strengthened monitoring of flood exposure accumulation within the underwriting 
portfolio 

These actions reflect a growing recognition that climate-related exposure extends beyond 
operational boundaries and into underwriting and value chain impacts. 
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Emission Reduction Plans 

Looking ahead, the Company aims to further reduce its environmental footprint through: 

 Expanding full digitalization of operational workflows 

 Embedding climate considerations into underwriting and investment decisions 

 Reducing non-essential business travel 

 Gradually enhancing data collection related to Scope 3 emissions 

These initiatives are designed to support long-term resilience while aligning with national 
and international climate ambitions. 

 

Energy 

Energy Consumption 

Energy consumption in 2025 primarily included: 

 Electricity usage across o ices and branches 

 Fuel consumption for Company vehicles 

Energy usage is monitored periodically and incorporated into sustainability performance 
indicators. Regular tracking enables the Company to identify e iciency opportunities and 
manage operational costs e ectively. 

Renewable Energy 

Although the Company does not directly own or operate energy generation assets, it 
recognizes the importance of supporting the transition toward cleaner energy sources. 

In this context, during 2025 the Company: 

 Assessed opportunities to contract with lower-carbon energy providers where 
feasible 

 Considered supporting renewable energy projects through its investment portfolio, 
in line with responsible investment principles 

These initiatives reflect a forward-looking approach that integrates environmental 
considerations into capital allocation decisions. 
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Energy E iciency 

Improving energy e iciency remains a key pillar of the Company’s environmental strategy. 
In 2025, e orts included: 

 Upgrading lighting systems to energy-e icient alternatives 

 Enhancing HVAC e iciency through optimization and maintenance 

 Promoting a culture of responsible energy consumption among employees 

Awareness campaigns and internal communications reinforced energy-saving behaviors, 
contributing to operational e iciency and emissions mitigation. 

 

Water 

Water Withdrawal and Consumption 

Water consumption in 2025 primarily related to o ice operations across the Company’s 
facilities. 

Measures implemented include: 

 Installation of water-saving fixtures where applicable 

 Employee awareness initiatives promoting responsible water use 

Although water consumption is not material relative to industrial sectors, the Company 
remains committed to responsible resource management. 

 

Discharge and Reuse 

The Company does not operate industrial processes that generate wastewater. 

All wastewater is managed through approved municipal systems in accordance with 
applicable regulations. 

No material water-related environmental incidents were recorded during the reporting 
period. 

 



 
 

25 | P a g e  
 

 

 

It is important to note that electricity and water consumption levels are influenced by 
seasonal factors, particularly higher temperatures and humidity levels during the summer 
months. Increased cooling requirements during these periods naturally lead to higher 
energy usage. The Company monitors these seasonal patterns to distinguish between 
structural increases in consumption and temporary fluctuations driven by climate 
conditions. 

 

Waste Management 

Non-Hazardous Waste 

As a service-based organization, the Company primarily generates non-hazardous o ice 
waste, including: 

 Paper 
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 Plastic 

 General o ice waste 

During 2025, the Company implemented several measures to reduce waste generation and 
improve waste management practices, including: 

 Strengthening recycling initiatives within o ice premises 

 Reducing printing volumes through digital workflows 

 Increasing reliance on electronic documentation and digital approvals 

 

Hazardous Waste 

Due to the nature of the Company’s operations as a service-oriented organization, no 
production activities generate hazardous waste. 

Any minor quantities of potentially sensitive materials (such as electronic equipment at 
end-of-life) are handled through approved disposal channels in accordance with 
applicable regulations and responsible waste management practices. 

 

Biodiversity 

Given the Company’s o ice-based service model, there is no direct operational impact on 
ecosystems or environmentally sensitive areas. 

However, biodiversity considerations are indirectly embedded within the Company’s 
broader climate and environmental risk assessments. Climate change–related exposures, 
including extreme weather events, are evaluated within underwriting and risk management 
frameworks, recognizing their potential impact on communities, insured assets, and 
natural ecosystems. 

 

Social Performance – 2025 

Overview 

People remain at the core of Orient Insurance’s strategy. 

During 2025, the Company focused on: 
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 Developing human capital 

 Supporting Emiratization and national talent development 

 Strengthening health and safety practices 

 Expanding community engagement initiatives 

The Company believes that sustainable performance is fundamentally driven by 
responsible workforce management, inclusive culture, and meaningful community 
contribution. 

 

Human Capital 

Workforce Overview 

The Company maintains a diverse workforce operating across: 

 The United Arab Emirates 

 Bahrain 

 Oman 

 Saudi Arabia 

 Regional subsidiaries 

 Broader markets across the Middle East, Asia, and Europe 

Gender Diversity 

Orient Insurance continues to promote gender diversity as a core component of its human 
capital strategy. 

During 2025: 

 Female representation across the workforce continued to grow 

 Women maintained a meaningful presence in leadership and managerial roles 

 The Company fostered an inclusive and respectful work environment that supports 
equal opportunity 

The Company recognizes that diverse leadership perspectives contribute to stronger 
decision-making, improved innovation, and sustainable long-term performance. 



 
 

28 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Emiratization 

Supporting national workforce development remains a strategic priority. 

In 2025, the Company: 

 Continued to increase Emiratization ratios in alignment with national targets 

 Implemented leadership development programs for UAE nationals 

 Supported government initiatives aimed at strengthening the knowledge-based 
economy 

Recognition under national initiatives such as “Nafis” reflects the Company’s commitment 
to investing in Emirati talent and building future-ready leadership pipelines. 

 

Equal Pay 

The Company is committed to the principle of: 

 Equal pay for equal work 

 Non-discrimination based on gender or nationality 

Compensation structures are governed by clear policies that emphasize fairness, 
transparency, performance, and regulatory compliance. Remuneration decisions are 
aligned with job responsibilities, performance outcomes, and market benchmarks. 

 

Employee Turnover 

Employee turnover rates are monitored periodically as part of human capital risk 
management. 

During 2025, the Company: 

 Conducted regular reviews of turnover metrics 

 Analyzed resignation trends and underlying causes 

 Implemented targeted talent retention initiatives 
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Retention strategies focus on career development, performance recognition, competitive 
benefits, and employee engagement programs. 

 

Organizational Structure 

The Company maintains a balanced organizational structure designed to enhance e ective 
governance and operational resilience. 

Key characteristics include: 

 A structured hierarchy that supports accountability and clear reporting lines 

 Alignment between age distribution and career progression pathways 

 A mix of experienced leadership and emerging talent 

The distribution of age groups across di erent managerial levels reflects a healthy talent 
pipeline. Senior roles are supported by experienced professionals, while younger 
employees are progressively integrated into growth and leadership development tracks. 

This structure promotes institutional stability while enabling sustainable growth and long-
term succession planning. 
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Age Wise 

Hierarchy-wise

Gender-wise

Headcount 2024

Less than 30 30 to 50 50 plus

Headcount 2025

Less than 30 30 to 50 50 plus

Headcount 2025

Junior-level Mid-level Senior-level

Headcount 2024

Junior-level Mid-level Senior-level

Headcount 2025

Male Female

Headcount 2024

Male Female
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Health and Safety 

Given the Company’s o ice-based operations: 

 There are no industrial or high-risk operational hazards 

 The primary focus remains on occupational health, workplace well-being, and 
preventive measures 

The Company promotes a safe and healthy work environment through structured policies, 
awareness initiatives, and preventive controls. 

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) 

No major workplace injuries were recorded during 2025. 

The Company continues to monitor health and safety indicators to ensure early 
identification of potential risks and continuous improvement of workplace conditions. 

Training and Awareness 

During 2025, the Company conducted: 

 First aid training sessions for designated sta  

 O ice safety awareness briefings 

 Emergency response planning and evacuation drills 

These initiatives support preparedness, resilience, and employee well-being. 

 

Human Rights 

Orient Insurance is committed to upholding human rights principles across its operations 
and value chain. 

The Company maintains: 

 An updated Code of Conduct 

 A Conflict of Interest Policy 

 A “Speak Up” Policy to encourage ethical reporting 

During 2025: 

 Employees received mandatory ethics and compliance training 
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 All employees signed an annual declaration acknowledging adherence to the Code 
of Conduct and disclosure of potential conflicts of interest 

These measures reinforce the Company’s culture of integrity, accountability, and ethical 
business conduct. 

 

Grievance Mechanisms 

The Company maintains structured internal reporting channels that allow employees and 
stakeholders to raise concerns confidentially. 

Key features include: 

 Internal reporting channels for misconduct or ethical concerns 

 Protection mechanisms for whistleblowers against retaliation 

All reported cases are reviewed in accordance with established governance procedures. 

 

Training and Development 

Continuous learning remains a cornerstone of sustainable human capital development. 

During 2025, the Company implemented: 

 Mandatory Code of Conduct training programs 

 Leadership development programs 

 Specialized professional training tailored to functional roles 

 Digital capability development initiatives 

Community Engagement 

During 2025, Orient Insurance continued to play an active role in supporting community 
initiatives aligned with its corporate values. Key initiatives included: 

 Ramadan food donation campaign supporting families in need 

 Breast cancer awareness activities promoting preventive health and community 
education 
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 Visit to a special needs care center, where employees engaged in interactive 
activities and community support 

 Support for humanitarian initiatives through the UAE Red Crescent 

These initiatives reflect the Company’s commitment to social responsibility beyond its core 
business activities. Orient views community engagement as an integral component of 
sustainable value creation and long-term societal impact. 

 

Governance – 2025 

Overview 

Sound corporate governance forms the foundation of the Company’s business model and 
long-term sustainability. 

Orient Insurance maintains a governance framework designed to ensure transparency, 
accountability, regulatory compliance, and e ective oversight of strategic and risk-related 
matters. 

 

Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors consists of: 

 7 members 

 Diverse professional backgrounds and expertise 

 No executive members 

This structure ensures a clear separation between oversight and executive management 
functions. 

 

Independence 

 More than one-third of Board members are independent 

 Active and specialized Board Committees support governance e ectiveness 

The presence of independent members strengthens objectivity in decision-making and 
enhances investor confidence. 
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Board Committees 

The Board operates through specialized committees, including: 

 Audit Committee 

 Risk Committee 

 Investment Committee 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

These committees hold regular, formally documented meetings and operate under 
approved charters. Their responsibilities include reviewing financial reporting, overseeing 
risk management, monitoring investment strategies, evaluating governance e ectiveness, 
and ensuring alignment of remuneration with performance and compliance standards. 

Anti-Corruption 

Orient Insurance maintains a zero-tolerance approach toward corruption and unethical 
conduct. 

The Company has implemented a comprehensive governance framework that includes: 

 An Anti-Corruption Policy 

 A Gifts and Hospitality Policy 

 A Conflict of Interest Policy 

 Mandatory ethics and compliance training for employees 

All employees are required to complete annual training and formally acknowledge 
adherence to the Code of Conduct and conflict of interest declarations. 

No corruption cases or material breaches of ethical standards were recorded during 2025. 

 

Supply Chain Management 

The Company applies structured due diligence procedures in the selection and monitoring 
of suppliers and business partners. 

Key measures include: 
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 Evaluation of suppliers through defined assessment criteria 

 Inclusion of ethical, compliance, and environmental considerations in vendor 
selection 

 Compliance with applicable sanctions regimes and regulatory requirements 

These measures support responsible procurement practices and mitigate reputational and 
regulatory risks within the value chain. 

 

Information Security and Data Protection 

Protecting customer and stakeholder data remains a strategic priority. 

During 2025, the Company maintained: 

 Full compliance with Central Bank of the UAE (CBUAE) regulatory requirements 

 Robust cybersecurity controls 

 Policies and systems designed to safeguard sensitive information 

Information security risks are monitored within the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 
framework and subject to oversight by the relevant governance bodies. 

 

Regulatory Disclosures 

The Company maintains a strong culture of regulatory compliance and transparency. 

Throughout 2025, Orient Insurance provided: 

 Regular disclosures to the Dubai Financial Market (DFM) 

 Periodic regulatory reporting to the Central Bank of the UAE 

 Full compliance with applicable supervisory and reporting obligations 

 

Non-Compliance Incidents 

No material regulatory violations or significant compliance breaches were recorded during 
2025. 
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Section Five 
Sustainability Initiatives and Sustainable Finance – 2025 

Overview 

As a leading insurance company in the UAE and the region, Orient Insurance recognizes 
that its role in sustainability extends beyond managing its operational footprint. Our 
broader impact is reflected through: 

 Underwriting decisions 

 Claims management practices 

 Investment allocation strategies 

 Product design and innovation 

 Capital management 

Sustainable finance is a core component of our strategic direction. We are progressively 
aligning our business activities with the global transition toward a low-carbon, resilient, 
and sustainable economy, in line with: 

 The UAE Net Zero 2050 objectives 

 The Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) 

Our approach seeks to balance financial performance with long-term risk management 
and responsible capital deployment. 

 

First: Sustainable Insurance Products 

Integration of Environmental Considerations in Underwriting 

During 2025, the Company continued developing its internal framework for assessing 
climate-related risks within underwriting processes. This includes: 

 Evaluating asset exposure to flood risks 

 Assessing heat-related and temperature stress risks 

 Considering evolving patterns of natural catastrophes 
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 Updating actuarial models to reflect emerging climate data and trends 

By embedding climate risk considerations into underwriting guidelines, the Company 
enhances portfolio resilience and aligns pricing mechanisms with forward-looking risk 
assessments. 

This approach supports: 

 Fair and risk-reflective pricing 

 E icient capital management 

 Ensuring the long-term sustainability of the insurance portfolio 

Embedding climate-adjusted underwriting practices strengthens portfolio resilience and 
protects the Company’s long-term financial stability in a rapidly evolving risk landscape. 

 

Supporting the Low-Carbon Transition 

During 2025, the Company continued exploring the design and development of insurance 
solutions that support the transition to a low-carbon economy, including products tailored 
to: 

 Electric and hybrid vehicles 

 Solar energy installations for buildings 

 Green-certified buildings 

 Sustainable infrastructure projects 

In addition, the Company is assessing opportunities to develop: 

 Specialized insurance coverage for renewable energy projects 

 Insurance products designed to support companies demonstrating strong 
environmental performance 

These initiatives position the Company to capture emerging opportunities associated with 
climate transition while supporting national sustainability objectives. 
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Socially Responsible Insurance 

Orient Insurance remains committed to promoting inclusive and socially responsible 
insurance solutions. 

The Company supports: 

 Insurance inclusion 

 Protection of individuals and families 

 Strengthening financial security within the community 

This is achieved through: 

 Comprehensive health insurance products 

 Insurance solutions tailored to small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) 

 Support for Emiratization and national workforce development 

Through these o erings, the Company contributes to economic resilience and social 
stability across the communities it serves. 

 

Sustainable Claims Management 

The Company continues enhancing claims management processes with a focus on 
e iciency and sustainability. 

Key initiatives include: 

 Accelerating digital transformation within claims processing 

 Reducing paper-based documentation 

 Improving operational e iciency and turnaround times 

 Supporting repairs and restoration practices that consider sustainability aspects, 
where applicable 

Where feasible, the Company encourages repair approaches that extend asset life, reduce 
waste, and promote responsible resource use, in coordination with approved service 
providers. 
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Second: Responsible Investments 

Integration of ESG in Investment Decisions 

The Company adopts a responsible investment methodology that incorporates ESG 
considerations into capital allocation decisions. Investment assessments take into 
account: 

 Environmental performance of investee companies 

 Governance practices and board e ectiveness 

 Risk management frameworks 

 Institutional reputation and regulatory standing 

Investments are evaluated based on a forward-looking approach that considers: 

 Long-term financial stability 

 Climate transition risks 

 Regulatory risks 

 Social and reputational risks 

This integrated framework ensures that financial returns are balanced with risk resilience 
and sustainability alignment. 

 

Exclusion of High-Risk Activities 

As part of its risk management and ethical investment principles, the Company periodically 
reviews exposure to sectors that may present elevated ESG risks, including: 

 High-emission or carbon-intensive industries 

 Sectors exposed to significant regulatory transition risk 

 Activities that may conflict with the Company’s ethical standards 

This review process supports prudent capital preservation and alignment with evolving 
sustainability expectations. 
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Alignment with Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 

ESG-related risks are incorporated into the broader Enterprise Risk Management 
framework and reflected within: 

 Investment Committee reports 

 Periodic risk assessments 

 Scenario analysis, where applicable 

Where data availability and portfolio composition permit, the Company explores scenario-
based assessments to evaluate how di erent macroeconomic, regulatory, and climate 
transition pathways could a ect asset valuations and portfolio stability. 

 

Third: ESG-Aligned Investment Portfolio Management 

Climate Risk Exposure Analysis 

In 2025, the Company enhanced its internal capabilities to better understand climate-
related exposure within its investment portfolio. This included: 

 Assessing portfolio exposure to transition risks 

 Analyzing potential carbon-related risks 

 Studying the potential impact of future carbon pricing policies 

These analyses aim to identify vulnerabilities associated with regulatory tightening, 
decarbonization trends, and shifts in investor preferences, ensuring that portfolio strategy 
remains forward-looking and resilient. 

 

Sustainable Portfolio Diversification 

The Company continues to pursue prudent and sustainable diversification strategies, 
including: 

 Strengthening geographic diversification 

 Reducing sector concentration risk 



 
 

41 | P a g e  
 

 Allocating capital to sectors expected to demonstrate long-term resilience and 
structural growth 

This diversification approach enhances financial stability while supporting exposure to 
emerging sustainable economic segments. 

 

Monitoring of Non-Financial Performance 

In addition to financial return metrics, the Company considers non-financial indicators 
when evaluating investments, including: 

 ESG ratings and third-party assessments 

 Annual sustainability reports 

 Climate-related disclosures 

 Evidence of strong governance practices 

This broader evaluation framework supports informed decision-making and risk-adjusted 
capital allocation. 

 

Investment Governance 

The Investment Committee maintains oversight of: 

 Investment policies and strategic asset allocation 

 Risk limits and exposure thresholds 

 Performance review 

 Regulatory compliance 

With periodic reporting submitted to the Board of Directors to ensure transparency, 
accountability, and alignment with the Company’s strategic and risk appetite framework. 

 

Enterprise Value Creation 

By integrating sustainability considerations into: 

 Underwriting 
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 Pricing 

 Claims management 

 Investment decisions 

 Risk management 

the Company is able to: 

✔ Enhance the quality and sustainability of earnings 
✔ Reduce risk volatility 
✔ Strengthen investor confidence 
✔ Support capital stability and solvency resilience 
✔ Build long-term shareholder value 

This integrated model reinforces the alignment between financial performance and 
responsible business conduct. 
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Conclusion 

This report reflects Orient Insurance’s firm commitment to embedding sustainability 
principles at the core of its strategy and day-to-day operations. The achievements realized 
during 2025 were not merely a response to regulatory requirements or global trends; rather, 
they represent a natural extension of our institutional culture grounded in integrity, 
transparency, innovation, and sustainable value creation for all stakeholders. 

The Company’s recognition with the ESG Label from Dubai Chamber for the second 
consecutive year confirms that our e orts are not theoretical but independently 
acknowledged under a comprehensive framework aligned with international best practices 
and local standards. This recognition demonstrates our ability to translate commitment 
into measurable performance and tangible outcomes. 

We recognize that the insurance industry plays a critical role in supporting the transition 
toward a low-carbon, inclusive, and resilient economy. By embedding environmental, 
social, and governance considerations into risk management, investment decisions, 
product design, and human capital management, we not only safeguard our business but 
also contribute to building a more sustainable and stable economic ecosystem. 

Our commitment remains aligned with: 

 The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

 The UAE Vision 2050 and Net Zero ambitions 

In the coming years, we will continue to enhance disclosure transparency, refine impact 
measurement tools, and further integrate climate risk analysis into our strategic and 
operational processes to ensure preparedness for future uncertainties and evolving market 
expectations. 

Our sustainability achievements are the result of the collective e orts of our Board of 
Directors, executive management, and employees, as well as the continued support of our 
customers, partners, and shareholders. As we expand regionally and strengthen our 
market position, we remain committed to building a responsible, resilient insurance 
company capable of generating long-term economic, social, and environmental value. 

We do not view sustainability as a destination, but as a continuous journey toward 
excellence, accountability, and sustainable growth. 

 

 


